
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND 

ENTERPRISE SPC 
 

TO BE HELD IN THE MS TEAMS 
 

ON TUESDAY 12 JANUARY 2021 AT 3.30 AM 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

TUESDAY 12 JANUARY 2021
  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes   

 
3 - 12 

2   Matters Arising   
 

 

3   Presentation: DCC EU Programme Participation Strategy-Wessel Badenhorst, 
Urban Mode Ltd   
 

13 - 44 

4   Presentation: Smart Cities District Presentation, Smart DCU District-Kieran 
Mahon, Smart DCU Projects Facilitator, Smart DCU   
 

45 - 60 

5   Presentation: Pre-Draft Consultation of the City Development Plan- Deirdre 
Scully, Deputy City Planner   
 

61 - 70 

6   Policy: 2021 Work Programme   
 

71 - 84 

7   SPC Working Group Progress   
 

 

a   Tourism, City Markets including Night Time Economy 
 

 

b   International Relations & EU Affairs 
 

85 - 90 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm 
if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014, the Data Protection Act 1988 and 2018, 
General Data Protection Regulations (EU) 2016/679 and the Defamation Act 2009. Data collected during this webcast will be retained 
in accordance with the legislation. 
 
Therefore, by entering the Council Chamber/Meeting Room and using the seats around the meeting tables, public gallery etc., you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Chief Executives Department on Extn. 2101 or DD (01) 222 2100. 

 



 

8   Economic Development & Enterprise Management Reports   
 

91 - 116 

9   Any other Business   
 

 

a   Motions of Notice  
i. Urban Recovery, Regeneration, and Revitalisation of Dublin City 

Strategy. 
 

 

b   2021 Meeting Dates 
 

117 - 
118 

 



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  1  
 

 

 

Members Present: 

Cllr. Claire O’Connor (Chair), Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Rachael Batten, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Danny Byrne, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Donna Cooney, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Mary Freehill, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Michael MacDonncha, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr. Cat O’Driscoll, Dublin City Council; 

Natalie McGuinness, Dublin Chamber of Commerce; Sectoral Member (Business Rep); 

Aidan Sweeney, IBEC; Sectoral Member (Business Rep); 

Odran Reid, Northside Homecare Service; Sectoral Member (PPN Rep); 

Evanne Kilmurray, Inner City Enterprise (ICE), Sectoral Member (PPN Rep). 

 

Apologies:  

Dr. Sarah Ingle, ACEI; Sectoral Member (Development Rep); 

Cllr. Tara Deacy, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr Nial Ring, Dublin City Council; 

Cllr Terence Flanagan, Dublin City Council. 

Officials Present: 

Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief Executive Officer 

Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager  

Greg Swift, Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 

Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic Development 

Jamie Cudden, Smart Cities 

Ciara O hAodha, Senior Economic Development Officer 

Grainne Kelly, Head of International Relations 

  

Presenters 

Emer O’Byrne, Senior Executive, BREXIT Unit, Enterprise Ireland  

Juliet Passmore, Economist, Dublin City Council 

Orla Veale, Project Lead, Smart Cities  

 

 

Strategic Policy Committee 

Economic Development & Enterprise  
Minutes of Meeting  

10th November2020 (3.30pm – 5.30pm) 

Delivered Remotely via MS Teams 

Page 3



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  2  
 

 

 

The Chair opened the meeting noting the requirements for remote meeting of the working group and advised of 

the workings and protocol of remote meetings. Cllr Freehill and Cllr Cooney agreed to act as Deputy Chairs, as a 

contingency plan if any technical problems arise. The Chair noted that this was the final meeting of the year and 

commended the work of Officials, Councillors and members on the work done to date and noted that 46 SPC 

related meetings had taken place in 2020.  

 

1. Minutes 

Minutes of the previous meeting, which took place on 15th September 2020, were agreed by Cllr. Freehill and 

seconded by Cllr. Cooney.  

 

2. Matters Arising 

Matters arising from minutes – Cllr Freehill raised a concern regarding the delivery of a written report on the work 

of the International Relations & EU Affairs SPC Working Group for this SPC meeting. An initial discussion took 

place between the Chair and Cllr Freehill, with the Chair notifying Cllr Freehill that she would be sticking rigidly to 

the agenda items and asked Cllr Freehill what was her matter arising from the minutes of the 15th September 2020.  

The Chair agreed to note Cllr Freehill’s matter arising as follows: the minutes did not adequately reflect that a 

written update in relation to EU Funded Programmes would be provided to the meeting of the 10th November 2020.  

The Chair advised Cllr Freehill that a verbal update on EU Funded Progarmmes was listed on the agenda for the 

10th November 2020. 

 

3. Presentation- Brexit 

Emer O’Byrne, Senior Executive, BREXIT Unit, Enterprise Ireland presented to the Committee on Brexit from 

Enterprise Ireland perspective, noting that EI were working very closely with LEO networks and that there was over 

€1 billion worth of trade every week between Ireland and the UK and that the UK was still a very important 

destination for many Irish exporters and will continue to be.  Business are struggling both with the uncertainty of 

Brexit and the added obvious pressures that Covid 19 has brought.  Message that EI is getting out there is that the 

UK has left the European Union and that will be leaving the single market and customs market on 01/01/21.  The 

main topics covered under the presentation were 

 9 areas of Brexit Exposure for companies & supports that would be needed to address some of the exposures. 

 Brexit Communications Strategy – 2016 to present. 

 The Brexit Readiness Checker. 

 The Ready for Customs Grant. 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter and opened the floor for discussion.  

Question: Cllr. Freehill asked what Enterprise Ireland considered to be the role of the City Council in the context of 

EI’s presentation. Response: Emer O’Byrne replied that it would be useful for any EI media campaigns/webinars 

on Brexit Readiness Checker to be promoted on DCC’s social media/communication channels.  

Question: Cllr. MacDonncha commented on the positive development of direct freight ferry from Ireland to the 

continent and asked if there were implications for Dublin Port / the Dublin Economy in relation to this.  His view 

was that it was positive and businesses should be encouraged to use that instead of the UK route. 

Page 4



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  3  
 

 

 

 

Response: Emer O’Byrne replied that for many years the land bridge has been used by Irish companies moving 

goods to Europe through the UK and that the UK has been used as a means to get to Europe.  She stated it was 

cheaper and took less time to travel through the UK with trucks then it was to go directly to Ports in France for 

example.  EI are however encouraging companies to explore alternative options with direct routes in order to avoid 

both cost and disruption come 1st January 2021.  

Question: Cllr. Cooney asked where the Brexit Readiness Checker was hosted.  She also updated the Group 

regarding the land bridge question. Both she and Cllr. Byrne are on the Irish Lights Committee and Cllr. Cooney 

raised the question of land bridge with the Minister for Transport.  The Department of Transport indicated to her 

that there is sufficient capacity on existing continental services to accommodate displaced land bridge traffic and 

there are more direct routes in place. She stated that 90% of Irish trade is freight.  

Response: Emer O’Byrne informed Cllr. Cooney that both the Brexit Readiness Checker and Ready for Customs 

Grant are hosted on www.prepareforbrexit.com website and that this simple website hosts all information and 

available supports and insight pieces for companies on getting ready for Brexit.  

Question: Cllr. Batten stated that the percentage of Brexit ready companies provided by EI is the same figure 

approximately as given last year by EI at a presentation.  She asked if there was a reason why the percentage 

figure had not increased in the last 12 months and if particular industries appeared to be less prepared than others. 

Response: Emer O’Byrne replied that surveys carried out by EI would suggest that we are seeing movement and 

indications that companies are becoming more Brexit ready but it would appear that the larger companies are 

taking actions but smaller companies are not as much.  These smaller companies have already faced huge 

challenges in relation to Covid 19 and are Brexit fatigued and EI are encouraging these companies to take action 

now. 

Feedback: Greg Swift complemented and thanked Emer O’Byrne on her presentation and reassured the committee 

that LEO are working very closely with EI in relation to Brexit and that LEO is promoting the checker and grant 

scheme and other EI initiatives on the DCC website.  LEO have also commenced customs training mentoring.  

 

4. Presentation – Your Dublin Your Voice  

Juliet Passmore, Economist, Dublin City Council presented to the committee on the Your Dublin, Your Voice 

Survey, Build Back Better. A survey which was carried out in August 2020 and consisted of an online survey 

between 13/8/20 to 21/8/20 with 951 respondents from “Your Dublin, Your Voice” opinion panel. A wide range of 

topics were surveyed varying from Change in Occupation Status, Commute Distance, Pre/Post – Covid Travel to 

Work/College, Behaviours since mid – March, Going to City Centre & Other Activities Pre and Post Covid to 

Encouraging staycations in Ireland and Dublin and Priorities for Retail Businesses. A copy of presentation was 

provided in ModGov pack for Nov SPC, prior to the meeting.  

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

The Chair thanked the presenter, commented on the decrease in numbers dining in the City and opened to the 

floor for discussion. 

Comments: Cllr MacDonncha commented on the public’s mind-set since the start of the pandemic and the City 

Centre is not seen as safe and people are fearful of using public transport etc.  He commented on the importance  

 

Page 5

http://www.prepareforbrexit.com/


Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  4  
 

 

 

 

of the City Centre as the economic engine of the country and that pre Covid retail was declining in use in favour 

of on line transactions, and that retail has picked up considerably in the suburbs with people choosing to shop 

local rather than travel to City Centre.  

Comments: Aiden Sweeny commented on current trends in line with remote working and online retail, combined 

with long commutes are enticing people away from the City Centre.  This was having a severe impact on footfall 

in the City Centre and there is a need to look at how the City Centre can entice people back.  

Comments: Cllr. Cooney commented on how the survey showed increasing trend preferences for cycling and 

active transport and green recovery / green infrastructure.  There is a need for a forward thinking Development 

Plan, making the City a liveable and walkable place to be.  Cultural activities have been missed, dining out, retail 

shopping etc.  The survey reflects the general feel people have with nature and the environment and a very strong 

green recovery was indicated in the survey.  

Question: Cllr. Freehill commented on the issue of falling rates and the serious consequences of this for Dublin 

City Council.  She asked if we have looked to other European Cities to see what they have done, have we used 

our connections with Euro Cities. Response: Juliet Passmore replied that DCC had looked to Liverpool and that 

their findings were very similar to that of Dublin.  

Comment: Natalie McGuinness commented on how people need to feel safe in the City, and what if anything could 

be done to make people feel safer.   

 

Note: Due to presenter’s technical issues, Item 6 was presented before Item 5. 

5. Presentation – Smart Cities : Smart D8 District  

Orla Veale, Project Lead, Smart Cities  

Orla Veale, Project Lead, Smart Cities presented to the committee on Smart D8 District, a collaborative initiative 

with a purpose to investigate how smart processes can utilise digital technologies and smart planning strategies 

to improve citizen’s health and wellbeing in the Dublin 8 area.  The initiative focuses on a people-centric approach 

with engagement and active participation of the community in D8. The lead partners are DCC South Central Area 

Office, Smart Dublin, The Digital Hub Development Agency and St. James’s Hospital. Smart D8 is a 2 year pilot 

programme with a Community Health and Wellbeing Survey and Analysis to be carried out in Nov and Dec 2020. 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

 The Chair thanked the presenter and opened the floor for discussion. 

Comment: Evanne Kilmurray suggested that Smart D8 link in with Social Enterprise in the D8 area, and spoke 

about St. Teresa’s Gardens and creating an enterprise culture within that area and suggested to link in with Heinz 

who are very active and keen to engage with the local community.  

Response: Orla Veale thanked Evanne Kilmurray for her suggestions and agreed with her comments.  

Question: Cllr. Cooney referred to DCC’s Cultural Area NCAD Initiative and recent application for the Urban 

Regeneration Funding and asked whether this initiative would fall under the Community Health and Wellbeing 

pillar. Response: Orla Veale thanked Cllr. Cooney and agreed with her stating that it would fit well into the wellbeing 

space and Smart D8 are aware of the DCC projects in Bridgefoot Street and Parks and accommodating artists 

spaces etc.  

 

Page 6



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  5  
 

 

 

 

6. Dublin City Summit Series 2020 – Reset Summit 

See written update provided in ModGov pack for November 2020 SPC.  

Mary MacSweeney gave a verbal overview of the Reset Summit, a fully virtual event in line with Level 5 government 

guidelines, scheduled to take place on 26th November 2020.  The Summit will consider how to build back a better 

Dublin following Covid-19 global pandemic and subsequent economic crisis.  The Chair asked members to confirm 

their attendance at the Event via Eventbrite. 

Comments, Feedback & Questions:  

Question: Cllr. O’Driscolll thanked Mary Mac Sweeney and commented the Event was very relevant under current 

circumstances.  She referred to a Motion put forward by Cllr. Horner and passed by City Council a number of 

months ago, about using Irish Sign Language interpretation at events such as this one and questioned whether it 

would be available at the Reset Summit or had it been considered. Response: Mary MacSweeney replied that she 

was not aware of the Motion, but that it was something that would be examined further and progressed if possible. 

Cllr. Freehill and Cllr. Cooney were in agreement and welcomed the use of visual aids / sign language interpretation 

at events, with Cllr. Freehill stating that 25% of the population have a hearing impairment.  

 

7. SPC Working Group Progress  

Mary MacSweeney provided a verbal update on both SPC Working Groups as follow:  

a. Tourism, City Markets including Night Time Economy SPC Working Group 

The Working Group met on 9th November 2020.  Cllr Danny Byrne, Sunil Sharpe and Cllr. Clare Byrne joined the 

Working Group, as approved by CPG on 25th Sept. The Chair of the Working Group, Cllr. Rachel Batten, stepped 

down and Cllr. Danny Byrne was nominated by the SPC chair to take over as Chair of this Working Group.  Cllr. 

Cooney stepped in as the Chair due to technical issues encountered by Cllr. Byrne.  There were a number of 

presentations at the Working Group including: 

 Richard Guiney, Dublin Town, presented on the loss of tourism/students/office workers in the City Centre and 

the impact on economy and businesses, and how Covid has accelerated current trends.  

 Mary MacSweeney presented on City Markets. 

 Sunil Sharpe provided a progress update on the National Task Force on Night Time Economy. The first 

meeting of steering group has been held and the decision was made to create a number of working groups 

which would link back into the main group with a March 21 deadline.  Sunil Sharpe noted that this deadline 

was ambitious and could possibly require an extension. 

This working group will meet again in December for a fifth and final time before year end. 

 

b. International Relations & EU Affairs SPC Working Group 

The working group met on 28th September and 12th October.  The external resource that was sought at the Full 

Council meeting on 14th Sept and the SPC meeting on 15th Sept has been secured. Wessel Badenhorst, Director, 

Urban Mode attended these two meetings of the Working Group and spoke to Members and set out a 3 step 

approach to address EU funding opportunities. 

 

 

Page 7



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  6  
 

 

 

 

1. Compile an internal organisational survey examining the level of participation in EU funded projects within 

2014 to 2020 period in October.  

2. Plan and carry out 5 information sessions with staff and Councillors in November, examining what options 

are under the new EU Funding programme 2021 – 2027 and examine what way work was done under the 

previous programme with internal and external speakers.  Information Sessions have commenced and the 

EU Funding Information Session – Full Council Briefing is scheduled to take place on 25th November. 

3. Develop a draft European Funding Strategy for DCC. 

Mary MacSweeney advised that at the same meeting, two presentations were given. The first presentation was to 

align DCC priorities with the European Funding Opportunities and to that end, Anthony Flynn gave a very detailed 

presentation looking at the Capital Programme 2020-2023 and aligning it against the EU priority areas of A Smarter 

Europe, A Greener Europe, A Connected Europe, A Social Europe and A Closer to Citizens Europe. Ciara O 

hAodha gave a presentation on an internal survey which was step 1 of the 3 step approach.  The survey has been 

conducted, the survey issued on the 1/10/20 with a deadline of 6/10/20 for responses and survey resulted outlined 

35 successful and 15 unsuccessful applications carried out across 8 Departments and 14 Sections of DCC and 

since then a detailed report on over 40 projects that DCC were involved in from 2014 to 2020 has been prepared 

by Ciara O hAodha. Mary MacSweeney concluded by saying that DCC are currently in the midst of Step 2 of this 

3 step approach and that the draft Strategy should be in place by December.   

Comments, Feedback & Questions: 

The Chair thanked Mary MacSweeney and commended the DCC Officials for their work to date on this and 

thanked Cllr Batten for work to date as Chair and wished Cllr Byrne well in role as new Chair.  

The Chair then opened to the floor for any questions/discussion.  

Comment: Cllr. Freehill advised the members that there was a €60b emergency programme available and that 

DCC should have had proposals in by now, she commented on the reluctance of DCC Officials to have another 

proposed meeting of the working group due to work volume constraints. Cllr Freehill referred to the reluctance of 

other Departments around Age Friendly Projects. The Chair pointed out that her comments could only be in relation 

to Item 7 on the agenda and asked did Cllr. Freehill have any issues with the verbal update report given by Mary 

MacSweeney on the 2 Working Groups.  The Chair advised Cllr. Freehill that Age Friendly Cities was not under 

the remit of this SPC and any queries in relation to Age Friendly Cities should be redirected to the appropriate staff 

officials and the SPC that are over that particular project. Cllr Freehill responded and stated in her opinion the 

seriousness of the situation that the South and West of Ireland are far ahead of the East in maximising EU funding. 

The Chair asked Cllr. Freehill what was her specific question/comment in relation to the 2 Working Groups verbal 

update given by Mary MacSweeney. Cllr. Freehill stated the need to work closer together and questioned the 

efficiency of the buy in expertise and whether it was working to best ability.  

Response: Mary MacSweeney outlined once again the 3 step approach which had been endorsed by the Working 

Group, which was already commenced and that the 1st of the information sessions had taken place with over 40 

people in attendance with the Eastern Midland Regional Assembly (EMRA) and Irish European Regions Office 

(IREO) attending as an external stakeholder.  Discussions had taken place with the European Regions Office and 

feedback is that the new policy funding programmes are currently being shaped and that these information sessions  

 

Page 8



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  7  
 

 

 

 

with internal and external stakeholders will be invaluable in building relationships with key organisations who will 

know what DCC’s interests are. Anthony Flynn reiterated the comments that Mary MacSweeney had made and 

advised Members that DCC are in a strong position to have DCC’s priorities identified and a draft strategy in place 

to present to the Members by the end of this year.  Collaborations have taken place on 3 occasions with EMRA 

and feedback is that DCC is in a very strong position and ahead of most local authorities, and he asked if the time 

could now be given to allow DCC Officials to prepare and provide a detailed draft Strategy for the Members and 

the Chair.   

Comment: Cllr. Freehill began speaking about Agenda Item 9.a.iii) the Motion regarding the Dublin Belfast 

Relations which she had submitted for consideration, but the Chair instructed that the agenda would be adhered 

to very strictly and this item could not be discussed until Item 9 was reached.  

Note: At end of meeting; Cllr. Cooney asked the Chair to consider a proposal that had been made at the Tourism, 

City Markets & Night Time Economy Working Group meeting on 9th November, to extend the working group to a 

deadline of March 2021. This was agreed by the Chair in light with the changes of the working group membership. 

8. Economic Development & Enterprise Management Reports  

Copy of Management Reports was provided in ModGov pack for Nov SPC, circulated in advance of meeting 

a. International Relations 

Grainne Kelly gave a snapshot of recent communications from twinning city San Jose and discussed the strong 

business and personal relationship that exists between the twinning cities of Dublin and San Jose.  

b. Local Enterprise Office 

Greg Swift gave an update as per the management report submitted in the Modgov pack centred on LEO’s Covid 

response, Mentoring, Training Webinars, Start Your Own Business Programmes, Lean for Micro Advice, 

Financial Supports, Micro Finance Offer, Brexit Supports, Customs Training.   

c. Dublin.ie 

Mary MacSweeney updated the Group on the Dublin Place Branding Team and referred to the Be Active Stay 

Healthy Campaign, the planned “Open for Christmas” campaign which is dependent on government restrictions.  

The campaign will include diversity groups. 

d. Economic Development Office 

Mary MacSweeney updated the Group on Virtual Events including Dublin Tech Summit (DTS) Virtual and 

Responsible Innovation Summit, Modus Circular Economy Programme, Dublin Economic Monitor, the Social 

Enterprise Awards, and the European Funding Programme seminars. 

e. Smart Dublin and Smart Cities 

Jamie Cudden updated the Group on the approach to Smart Districts and how it is being used to accelerate 

innovation.  He gave an overview of the Smart Docklands District, Future Planning Project – 3D Virtual Model of 

Dockland District, a project in partnership with Microsoft and Bentley to use Microsoft Teams as an access 

platform to use digital planning, DCU District, and the Sandyford Business District.  

 

 

 

Page 9



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  8  
 

 

 

 

Comments, Feedback & Questions: 

The Chair thanked the presenters and opened the floor for questions/comments.  

Question: Cllr. Freehill requested Jamie Cudden to make contact with her or alternatively provide best contact 

details in relation to a smart cities project in her area which she wished to discuss further with him, namely the 

Harold’s Cross Smart Community Initiative. Response: Jamie Cudden to contact Cllr. Freehill. 

Feedback: Cllr. Cooney thanked the Group for their updates and commended the work of LEO.  She requested 

that the LEO breakdown figures be circulated to her and the other Members. Greg Swift advised her they were 

included in the management reports already circulated through Modgov. Feedback: Evanne Kilmurray commended 

the work of LEO, in particular, the mentoring and trading on line vouchers. 

 

9. A.O.B.  

a. Motions of Notice  

i. Dublin Belfast Corridor Working Group  

Motion for the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC  

Odran Reid, PPN Representative: 

‘That Dublin City Council establish a working group consisting of elected members and officials (drawn 

from Economic and Enterprise, Planning, Transport and Community) to work on the development and 

implementation of the Dublin Belfast corridor with the other Local authorities involved in the process. 

Odran Reid stated that regional authority is critically important and stressed the importance of dialogue 

with different state sectors and that it is critically important in relation to Brexit that we are well connected 

with Northern Ireland. 

Comments, Feedback & Questions: 

Motion seconded by Cllr. Freehill and by Cllr. MacDonncha – fully support the motion and a Working Group should 

be established.  

The Chair stated that the Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor Steering Committee was established in March 2018, 

with representatives from each of the 8 Local Authorities.  The 3 SPC nominations, which were agreed at the 

September meeting to represent DCC on the Political Oversight Group, have been approved by the CPG on the 

25/9/20 and The Chair, Lord Mayor, and Cllr Freehill were appointed at full Council meeting on the 5/10/20 to 

represent DCC. A letter issued from the Chief Executives shortly thereafter to the Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor.  

Each of the 8 Local Authorities representatives are to meet in early January and will undertake the work that is 

proposed by this Motion.  The Chair stated, that in her opinion as Chair, the Working Group already exists albeit in 

the Political Oversight Group of the Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor and that the establishment of another Working 

Group usurps and negates the role of the Chair, the Lord Mayor and Cllr. Freehill.   

Cllr. MacDonncha proposed that instead of a Working Group establishment that the 3 members of the Political 

Oversight Group would link in directly with this SPC and be open to other Councillors giving insight who are not 

part of this Oversight Group. The Chair was agreeable to this and put it to the Members.  

Anthony Flynn advised the Members that in the event of another Working Group being established, the Council 

would not have resources in place to service this proposed Working Group.  

As the time allocation of 2 hours had been reached, the Chair made the decision to close the meeting and protests 

were made by Cllr Freehill to her Motion not being reached.   

 

Page 10



Minutes of ED & Ent SPC Mtg 10Nov2020  9  
 

 

 

Cllr. Cooney asked the Chair to consider a proposal that had been made to extend the report on the Sub Committee 

Market, Tourism and Night Time Economy to a deadline of March 2021. This was agreed by the Chair in light with 

the changes of the working group membership. 

Further protests were made by Cllr. Freehill, but the Chair concluded the meeting, conscious of member’s 

requirements to attend other meetings etc. 

 

ii Urban Recovery, Regeneration and Revitalisation of Dublin City Strategy 

Not reached.  

iii Dublin Belfast Relations  

 Not reached.  

 

b. 2021 Meeting Dates  

Not reached.  
 

 

Next SPC Meeting: 12th January 2021 (3.30pm – 5.30pm) 

 

Action items for Progression: 

 

Agenda 

Item: 

Action: Responsibility: 

3 Circulate EI BREXIT presentation to members Ciara O hAodha 

5 Circulate Smart Cities presentation to members Ciara O hAodha 

6 Register to Reset Summit on 26th November All members 

6 Use of Sign Language Interpretation at Events to be researched and reviewed Mary MacSweeney  

7a Extend Tourism & City Markets including Night Time Economy Wrkg Group to March 2021 Ciara O hAodha 

8 Contact Cllr. Freehill regarding Harold’s Cross Smart Community Initiative  Jamie Cudden  

9a ii Motion to proceed to January meeting of SPC Ciara O hAodha  

9a iii Motion to proceed to January meeting of SPC Ciara O hAodha  

 

Page 11





 

  

EU Programme 

Participation Strategy            

2021 - 2027 
 

 

 

 

A strategy to guide staff participation in EU 

partnership projects during the EU budget period 

2021 to 2027 

 

Page 13



1 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

 

 

Dublin City Council 
EU Programme Participation  

Strategy 
2021 - 2027 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Glossary Of Abbreviations 2 

Executive Summary 3 

Assessment Of Participation In Eu Budget Period 2014 To 2020 5 

Aim And Objectives Of The Strategy 8 

Targets, Milestones And Indicators 9 

Policy Context Of The Strategy 10 

EU Programmes Relevant To Dcc Policies And Operations 11 

Cooperation With The National Contact Points 13 

Regional Cooperation 13 

Cooperation With Third Level Education And Research Institutions 14 

Citizen And Community Engagement 15 

Internal EU Project Support Services 16 

Project Approval 17 

Strategy Review 18 

Conclusions: What Will Success Look Like? 19 

Appendix A: Staff Survey October 2020 20 

Appendix B: Agendas Of Staff Information Sharing Sessions And Session With Councillors 27 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



2 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Glossary of Abbreviations  

CARO            Dublin Metropolitan Climate Action Regional Office 

CERV                    Citizens, Equality, Rights and Values 

DCC                       Dublin City Council  

ETC             European Territorial Cooperation Programme  

EU                          European Union 

EUPO                           EU Programmes Office 

EMRA              Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly 

IREO               Irish Regions European Office  

PPN                 Public Participation Network  

UCC                Urban Consolidation Centres 

UIA           Urban Innovative Actions 

 

Figure Index 

Figure 1              Internal Organisation Survey Summary   page 5 

Figure 2  Information Sharing Sessions     page 6 

Figure 3  Research & Innovation Ecosystem    page 14 

Figure 4  Proposed EU Project Alignment Matrix   page 10 

 

Strategy Context:  

In late September 2020, the Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee Working 

Group on International Relations & European Affairs, sought to ascertain details on existing and past 

EU projects and EU funded national projects that Dublin City Council has participated in or applied to. 

This was in order to prepare for future participation in EU project opportunities; to gain an 

understanding of the level and scope of EU funded projects under the 2014 to 2020 EU budget 

cycle; and to assist in raising awareness of funding opportunities in the new EU budget cycle 

(2021-2027). A three step development process commenced in October and culminates with the 

completion of this strategy document. We would like to thank the members of the SPC Working 

Group for their consultation throughout this process. 

 

The Strategy was produced by Wessel Badenhorst of Urban Mode Ltd with assistance from  

Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Economic Development; Ciara O hAodha, Senior Economic 

Development Officer; and Gráinne Kelly, International Relations Officer.  

 

December 2020   

Page 15



3 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Executive Summary 
 

The EU budget 2021 to 2027 presents opportunities for Dublin City Council (DCC) to 

participate in EU partnership projects. It will do so by building on its track record of 

involvement as shown in a staff survey conducted in October 2020. In the EU budget period 

2014 to 2020 DCC staff were participants in 35 successful projects. A total of 15 projects were 

unsuccessful which in a competitive process is a success rate of 70%. Above 20% is deemed a 

good outcome. 

 

In November 2020 four thematic staff information sharing sessions were held, each with 

presenters from national contact points relevant to the specific theme together with staff 

experienced in EU projects. The conclusions were that although EU funding is an incentive to 

stimulate project development, the main focus should be on staff development and building 

the capacity of DCC in key performance and policy areas. Successful projects showed impacts 

on innovation in areas ranging from low-carbon transition to creative visual thinking. 

 

The aim of this Strategy is to provide a framework for the participation of DCC staff in EU 

partnership projects which will result in an increase over the next EU budget period in the 

number of successful projects as well as the number of staff engaging in EU projects.  

 

From the survey and information sharing events it became clear that there is a perceived lack 

of support in DCC for staff who want to participate in EU Projects. There is limited project 

coordination in DCC with no clarity as to who participates in projects with which partners and 

to what end, with practically no follow-up on project impacts and future opportunities. 

 

To address these shortcomings, a new office, the EU Programme Office (EUPO), will be 

established. The functions of the office will include processing approval of applications for 

DCC staff participation in EU partnership projects; procuring expertise to support staff in 

developing project proposals, building partnership networks, assessing project 

implementation and evaluating impacts of projects; and supporting staff to put in place 

administrative and financial procedures that will ensure DCC is compliant with formal EU 

partnership project agreements. EUPO will develop guidelines and criteria for project 

participation and produce a project application form to expedite the project approval process. 

 

The office will also be the point of contact for educational and research institutions as well as 

other organisations who want to engage DCC as a project partner. The office will be the liaison 

of DCC with all national contact points of EU Programmes as well as with the regional 

coordination bodies for EU Programmes, EMRA and the Irish Regions European Office (IREO). 

The office will maintain data on projects, events and networks including secure contact details 

of partners (e.g. peer cities, educational institutions and other relevant organisations). 

Page 16



4 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

The office will fulfil its role in creative ways to stimulate enthusiasm in DCC for staff 

participation in EU partnership projects. This will include hosting ideas generation and 

‘pitching’ events, facilitating ‘matchmaking’ for potential projects and partners as well as 

arranging for more experienced staff to mentor less experienced staff. EUPO will also create 

its own communication platform to alert staff of opportunities, to share news of events and 

to showcase staff participating in EU partnership projects. The office will facilitate regular 

information sharing events involving staff, elected members, thematic presenters and the 

general public. 

 

The premise of all EU partnership projects is that the principal outcome will be improvements 

in the lives of citizens and local communities that can be inferred from the activities in these 

projects. Unfortunately the link between project activity and local benefits are often poorly 

understood, mainly because of inadequate communication and limitations on project 

management. DCC will use platforms such as the Public Participation Network to deepen 

understanding of the challenges to be addressed by proposed EU partnership projects. 

 

Dublin is valued as a prominent city in the European Union. Expectations (e.g. as expressed 

by the European Commission Representation in Ireland) are that Dublin will be a leading city 

in a number of policy priority areas and for example, that it will be one of the 100 climate-

neutral European cities by 2030. This Strategy helps Dublin City Council to create the support 

mechanisms to play its part in meeting these expectations.   

Page 17



5 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Assessment of Participation in EU budget period 2014 to 2020 
 

Internal Organisation Consultation: October 2020 

Dublin City Council (hereinafter referred to as DCC) is an active participant in EU project 

partnerships. In the EU budget period 2014 to 2020, departments and offices in DCC 

participated in 35 projects. A staff survey (October 2020) showed that the themes explored 

in the successful projects included: 

 

● Energy: Retrofitting buildings 

● Energy: Industrial waste 

● Low-carbon transition roadmaps for citizens 

● Low-carbon transition biking initiatives 

● Migrant entrepreneurs 

● Social Innovation and the Social Economy 

● Visual Thinking Strategies in Arts Education 

● Social Inclusion through Arts Education 

● Flood relief nature-based solutions 

● Coastal eco-engineering 

● Public open data and ‘Big Data’ initiatives 

● Digital citizen engagement 
 

Staff also identified possible themes for future projects: 
 

Themes / topics to explore / address with other potential EU partners: 

Smart Cities, Innovation, Citizen Engagement, Digital Transformation, Supporting SME's 
through Testbeds, Pilot site for Research and Innovation, Open Data, City Data, Economic 
Development, Living Labs, Innovative Procurement, Climate Action Calls, Smart Districts, 
Smart Tourism. 

Sustainable mobility 

Innovation, Entrepreneurship, Ecosystem Development, SME's, Sustainability, Social 
Economy, Circular Economy, Underrepresented Groups, 

New affordable housing and sustainable urban development 

Building retrofit, building sustainability 

Urban renewal, sustainable city development, discussion on the future of cities, implications 
of Covid-19 for cities. 

Smart cities related to transportation, intelligent transport system. 

Arts Development, Policy and Strategy for Neighbourhoods and Cities; Artform related topics 
- visual art, drama, music etc;  Architecture, placemaking, and public art; arts development 
for children and young people, older people, arts festivals, social inclusion/diversity, audience 
development 

Biodiversity and Ecosystems, Climate Change Adaptation, Urban Forestry, Health, Green 
infrastructure, Nature-Based Solutions, Citizen science 

 

See Appendix A for the full Staff Survey Report. 

   Figure 1: Internal Organisation Survey Summary 

 

 

8 

Depts

14 

Sections

50 

Projects

4 

Programmes

Survey 
Results

Page 18



6 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Information Sharing Sessions: November 2020 

The survey was followed by four online staff information sharing sessions held in November 

2020 each covering a specific broad category namely Regional and Urban Development; 

Horizon Europe;  Social and Cultural; and Smart and Green. Attendance at the sessions were 

30 participants on average. 

 

The following national contact points of European Programmes as well as the European 

Commission Representation in Ireland presented in these sessions: 

 Irish Regions European Office – covering all EU Programmes and principal liaison office in 

Brussels for Irish local authorities. 

 Eastern and Midlands Regional Assembly – covering territorial cohesion programmes (i.e. 

ETCs – or previously known as Interreg) and specifically national contact point for URBACT 

and the Urban Innovative Actions (UIA) and the new Urban Europe Programme 

 The Wheel – national contact point for social inclusion programmes such as Europe for 

Citizens and the new CERV Programme 

 Leargas – national contact point for the Erasmus 

Plus Programme 

 Enterprise Ireland – national contact point for the 

Horizon 2020 programme and the new Horizon 

Europe programme 

 The Arts Council – national contact point for the 

Creative Europe Programme 

  

See Appendix B for the agendas of the staff 

information sharing sessions. 
 

The main conclusions drawn from the discussions: 

 Although EU funding is an incentive to stimulate proposal and project development, the 

main focus should be on staff development and building the capacity of DCC in key 

performance and policy areas. 

 Several successful projects show the impacts of such projects on innovation in the 

services provided by DCC. 

 Participation in EU projects is an active contribution and alignment by DCC to the policy 

implementation agenda of the European Union. 

 DCC benefits from projects where good practices can be transferred and where services 

can be benchmarked against other local authorities. 

 Staff benefit from the knowledge development and sharing processes underpinning EU 

projects. 

 Choosing the right projects and the right partners is key to DCC being successful with 

participation in EU partnership projects. 

 

            Figure 2: Information Sharing Sessions 

       

 

5

Sessions

21 

Speakers

7

National 
Contact Points

4 

Higher 
Education 
Institutes

Information 
Sharing 
Sessions

Page 19



7 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

The following challenges were identified: 

 

 There is a perceived lack of support in DCC for staff who want to participate in EU Projects.  

 There is limited coordination in DCC with regard to who participates in projects; 

evaluation of project potential including which programmes and objectives to prioritise; 

and follow-ups on impacts and future opportunities. 

 DCC is an attractive prospective project partner for many stakeholders, none more so than 

for third level institutions. This is especially the case for Horizon 2020 calls and often there 

are several requests for participation made mere weeks before the call deadlines. This 

could lead to a lack of deliberation on potentially beneficial projects. 

 There is an administrative burden associated with EU projects which can be a barrier to 

participation if not managed effectively. 

 Staff participation in EU projects require appropriate time management and planning of 

the use of resources. 

 Resource Retention & Knowledge Gap following project completions 

 

Following on from the staff information sharing sessions, an online session was held for 

councillors to give an overview of the survey and the presentations and discussions at these 

sessions. 

 

It is clear from the staff engagement process that DCC will benefit significantly if the future 

participation in EU Programmes is optimised. This is the rationale for the Strategy.  

  

Caveat 

The Strategy guides the participation of the staff from Dublin City Council in EU Programmes 

aimed at achieving the policy objectives of the European Union through transnational project 

partnerships. 

 

The Strategy does not provide guidelines for accessing European Union funding administered 

through national programmes (e.g. social inclusion funding via SICAP Programme or SME 

supports via Enterprise Ireland funding to the Local Enterprise Office), or through 

intermediaries such as the European Investment Bank. There are national policy guidelines 

and procedures that direct how to access EU co-funded national initiatives. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



8 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Aim and Objectives of the Strategy 
 

The aim of the Strategy is to provide a framework for the participation of DCC staff in 

partnership programmes of the European Union (EU). 

 

The level of participation can range from active roles such as leading a transnational EU 

project to more passive roles such as coordinating the participation of local enterprises, 

community-based organisations and community groups in EU partnership projects. 

 

The following objectives guide DCC to pursue this aim: 

1. To ensure that any participation in an EU partnership project by DCC staff contributes to 

the goals and policy objectives of the European Union and Dublin City Council. 

2. To promote participation in EU partnership projects which will measurably contribute to 

the capacity of DCC to meet its mission and public obligations. 

3. To cooperate with relevant bodies such as national contact points of EU Programmes, the 

Eastern and Midlands Regional Assembly (EMRA) and the Irish Regions European Office 

(IREO) that will assist with the participation of Dublin City Council staff in EU partnership 

projects. 

4. To engage with local communities and targeted beneficiaries matching where possible 

intended impacts with local needs. 

5. To build the international reputation of DCC and the city of Dublin through participation 

in EU partnership projects. 

6. To use participation in EU partnership projects to promote innovation in the operations 

of DCC that is green and smart and that enables openness, diversity and social inclusion. 

7. To ensure that participation in EU partnership projects brings additionality to the services 

of DCC.    

 

  

Page 21



9 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Targets, Milestones and Indicators 
 

This Strategy will be a success if the following targets and milestones are reached in the period 

2021 to 2027: 

 

Targets & Milestones: 
1. The establishment of a new support structure for staff participating in EU partnership 

projects. 

2. The periodic hosting of events to communicate opportunities for participation as well as 

access to policy discussions relevant to the operations of DCC. 

3. To increase direct participation by DCC staff in EU partnership projects to 40 approved 

projects, given that it is a competitive process with an approval rate often below 20% (i.e. 

only 1 in 5 project proposals are approved). 

4. To involve at least twenty staff members with no previous experience in EU partnership 

projects. 

5. An established network of trusted partners (e.g. other local authorities, universities and 

development agencies) to collaborate with in future EU partnership projects. 

6. A panel of experts and service providers to assist staff with the development of proposals, 

the consultation with stakeholders and for securing partnerships to participate in EU 

projects.  

 

Indicators:  
The following indicators will point to the successful implementation of the Strategy: 

 

1. The capacity to involve more staff to develop proposals and initiate participation in EU 

Programme calls and policy events (e.g. The European Week of the Committee of the 

Regions). 

2. The capability of more staff to develop proposals and create partnerships in response to 

calls of the national government for Urban Regeneration, Innovation and Climate Action. 

3. The capacity in DCC departments, units or offices to confidently administer all aspects of 

EU partnership projects. 

4. Greater publicity for the specific projects in which DCC staff participate at local, national 

and European level. 

5. Better understanding among staff of the operational framework for EU projects. 

6. Improved interdepartmental dialogue as a result of participation in EU projects.  

 

  

Page 22



10 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Policy Context of the Strategy 
 

For the EU budget period 2021 to 2027, the participation of DCC in EU partnership projects is 

subject to the assessment of the proposed project’s contribution to achieving goals and 

objectives set by both the European Union and Dublin City Council. 

 

In particular, participation in projects that articulate the vision of the DCC for the city of Dublin 

to be a green, smart city appreciated for its diversity and openness, will be encouraged. 

 

The following matrix shows the complementarity of the principal policy goals for the 

European Union and Dublin City Council in the short to medium term: 

 

Figure 4: Proposed EU Project Alignment Matrix 

 

 

Proponents of proposed projects will have to demonstrate with which boxes their projects 

will be aligned.  

 

  

Page 23



11 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

EU Programmes relevant to DCC Policies and Operations 
 

There are EU Programmes tailored for cities and local authorities and there programmes with 

benefits to citizens or target groups in alignment with objectives of local authorities. 

 

The following programmes will be relevant to DCC policies and operations: 

 

The Urban Agenda for the EU 

The Urban Agenda for the EU was formed with the agreement of the Amsterdam Pact by 

member states in 2016. The agenda calls for partnerships to pursue integrated urban 

development across 14 priority themes namely Air Quality, Circular Economy, Climate 

Adaptation, Culture/Cultural Heritage, Digital Transition, Energy Transition, Housing, 

Inclusion of Migrants and Refugees, Jobs and Skills in the Local Economy, Public Procurement, 

Security in Public Spaces, Sustainable Land Use, Urban Poverty. 

 

Urban Innovative Actions (UIA) 

The ‘urban lab’ of Europe to test and prototype innovative ideas for improvements to the 

urban landscape, services and infrastructure. Projects could be funded up to 5 million euro 

per city. The themes for the UIA calls are aligned to the priority themes of the Urban Agenda 

for the EU. 

 

URBACT 

The URBACT Programme supports transnational intercity networks in which partner cities 

work together on specific policy areas jointly agreed between the cities and the Programme. 

These policy areas are part of broader themes namely developing the local economy, 

sustaining and protecting the natural environment, actively pursuing social inclusion and 

building city governance capacity. Action plans developed via URBACT networks are a good 

foundation for proposals to access European operational funds (via national programmes). 

 

ETC – Northwest Europe 

The Northwest Europe Programme is a European Territorial Cooperation Programme (ETC) 

with the ambition to make the North-West Europe area a key economic player and an 

attractive place to work and live, with high levels of innovation, sustainability and cohesion. 

Organisations from regions in Belgium, France, Germany, Ireland, Luxembourg, The 

Netherlands and Switzerland are eligible for funding of partnership projects. 

 

ESPON 

The ESPON programme supports public bodies with the production and dissemination of 

‘territorial evidence’ that underpins spatial planning thus promoting territorial cohesion. 

 

 

Page 24

https://ec.europa.eu/futurium/en/urban-agenda
https://uia-initiative.eu/en
https://urbact.eu/
https://www.nweurope.eu/
https://www.espon.eu/programme/espon/espon-2020-cooperation-programme


12 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

CIVITAS 

The European Programme to promote sustainable urban mobility is called CIVITAS. It is a 

network of cities dedicated to cleaner, better transport in Europe and beyond.  Since 2002, 

the CIVITAS Initiative has tested and implemented over 800 measures and urban transport 

solutions as part of demonstration projects in more than 80 Living Lab cities Europe-wide. It 

has assisted many European cities to develop Sustainable Urban Mobility Plans (SUMPs). 
 

Horizon Europe 

The main and largest European programme to support research and innovation is Horizon 

Europe. It is an extensive programme involving thousands of third level institutions, local 

authorities, innovative companies and community organisations with several strands and 

numerous calls requiring coordination and support at European and national level.  
 

Five missions for the Programme are to be reached by 2030 namely: 

 Conquer cancer 

 Prepare Europe for climate disruptions and accelerate the transformation to a climate 

resilient and just Europe. 

 Restore our ocean and waters (Mission Starfish). 

 100 Climate-neutral Cities by 2030 - by and for the citizens (at least one in each member 

state). 

 Caring for soil is caring for life. 
 

LIFE 

The LIFE Programme is the EU’s main funding programme for supporting environmental, 

nature conservation and climate action projects throughout the EU.  
 

Erasmus 

Although the Erasmus Programme is known for the highly successful student ‘Erasmus year’, 

it is also the principal European Union programme to support innovation and inclusion in 

education, training, sport and youth work. The programme is also unique in the sense that 

the national contact point in each member state is also the funder for transnational 

partnership projects. 
 

Creative Europe 

The main aim of the Creative Europe programme is to help cultural works in member states 

to reach audiences in other countries. It provides funding for the arts, design, crafts and 

heritage fields. There is a strong focus on digital skills development and media production 

using new technologies. 
 

CERV 

CERV is a new European programme to support social development and specifically to address 

Europe-wide social issues. Existing programmes such as Europe for Citizens and Daphne will 

be incorporated. 

Page 25

https://civitas.eu/
https://www.horizon2020.ie/
https://www.horizon2020.ie/
https://ec.europa.eu/environment/archives/life/index.htm
https://www.leargas.ie/
https://www.creativeeuropeireland.eu/
https://www.accesseurope.ie/


13 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Cooperation with the National Contact Points  
 

The staff information sharing sessions were ably assisted by representatives from the various 

national contact points of the above mentioned European Programmes. 

DCC will maintain relationships with all the national contact points of relevant European 

Programmes in order to obtain timely information on calls for proposals and to establish 

adequate support for staff participating in EU partnership projects. 

DCC will encourage staff to, where possible, attend the events and ‘open days’ organised by 

national contact points as part of the process of skilling staff to effectively participate in 

European Programmes. 

 

Regional Cooperation  
 

There is a growing direct relationship between the European Commission together with its 

various programmes and the regional structures in the European Union. The Eastern and 

Midlands Regional Assembly (EMRA) is tasked with administering and coordinating 

participation in European Programmes. DCC will cooperate with EMRA to ensure the 

optimising of resources with a view to gain maximum benefits from participating in European 

Programmes. 

 

EMRA is also responsible for maintaining a direct representation in Brussels on behalf of Irish 

local authorities. This office, the Irish Regions European Office (IREO), serves as a single 

contact point covering all European programmes that includes information and guidance on 

calls for proposals, policy events, networking opportunities as well as the work of the 

Committee of the Regions.  

 

DCC will continue to work together with the other Dublin local authorities to share project 

information and to scope potential project opportunities. In particular, DCC will help build the 

capacity of the joint structures of the Dublin local authorities such as Codema, CARO, Smart 

Dublin and Dublinked to become vehicles for partnerships with key peer European cities in 

the quest to drive the green, smart and digital transition in the Dublin Region.  

 

DCC will work with its partners at regional level to continuously evaluate the impacts of 

European partnership projects with the intention to scale innovations and correct 

deficiencies. 

 

 

Page 26

https://www.ireo.eu/
https://data.smartdublin.ie/


14 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Cooperation with Third Level Education and Research Institutions 
The Horizon Europe Programme requires research institutions availing of programme support 

to build partnerships at community and local level, in particular to assess the impacts of their 

research and innovation projects. 
 

The large number of third level education and research institutions in the Dublin Region who 

seek to build such partnerships with DCC shows the need for procedures to facilitate fair and 

mutually beneficial interaction. DCC has a key role to play to support the regional research 

and innovation ecosystem (See chart below) while managing its organisational resource 

requirements. 
 

DCC will issue guidelines to all such institutions to stipulate the points of contact in DCC as 

well as the steps to be taken to gain approval for project commitments. The guidelines will 

also issue deadlines for receipt of draft proposals for internal consideration and decision 

making.  
 

These guidelines will not preclude individual staff members, who have already built networks 

with research institutions, to continue with their collaboration and to contribute to the 

regional research and innovation ecosystem.   
 

Figure 3: Research and Innovation Ecosystem 

 

Page 27



15 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

DCC will periodically host staff information sharing events where third level institutions will 

be requested to participate and communicate project findings as well as new project 

opportunities. DCC may also broaden the participation in such events by inviting local target 

beneficiaries to give accounts of their engagement in projects and the local changes that can 

be attributed to projects. 

Citizen and Community Engagement 
The premise of all EU partnership projects is that the principal outcome of projects is 

improvements in the lives of citizens and local communities that can be inferred from the 

activities in these projects. Unfortunately the link between project activity and local benefits 

are often poorly understood, mainly because of inadequate communication and limitations 

on project management.  

 

To improve project communication and citizen and community engagement in general, DCC 

will work with existing platforms for citizen and community engagement such as the Public 

Participatory Network (PPN) and local development companies to facilitate project 

communication events and to produce project media content for dissemination.  

 

These platforms will also be utilised as conduits for conducting stakeholder and needs 

analyses and to deepen understanding of the challenges to be addressed by proposed EU 

partnership projects. 

  

Page 28



16 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Internal EU Project Support Services   
DCC will establish the EU Programmes Office to provide efficient support services for staff 

participating or intending to participate in EU partnership projects. 

 

The office will implement this Strategy and report to the Executive Manager. 

 

The DCC Senior Management Team will be regularly updated on the progress made with 

implementation and with recommendations for changes and improvements to the Strategy 

where appropriate. 

 

The remit of EU Programmes Office will include the following functions: 

 Processing approval of applications for participation of DCC staff in EU partnership 

projects. 

 Procuring expertise to support staff in developing and writing project proposals, 

building networks for partnerships, assessing project implementation and evaluating 

impacts of projects. 

 Support staff to put in place administrative and financial procedures that will ensure 

DCC is compliant with the formal EU partnership project agreements to which DCC is 

a partner with liabilities.  

 Liaison with all national contact points of EU Programmes relevant for DCC. 

 Liaison with the EMRA and the IREO. 

 Facilitation of regular information sharing events. 

 Facilitation of project-related public information and engagement events. 

 Processing and maintaining data on projects, events and networks including secure 

contact details of partners (e.g. peer cities, educational institutions and other relevant 

organisations). 

 Serving as the contact point for educational and research institutions as well as other 

organisations who want to engage DCC as a project partner. 

 Liaison with other local authorities to optimise the use of resources and maximise the 

benefits of participation in EU partnership projects. 

 General responsibilities to manage resources and reporting on the use of resources 

and DCC staff participation in EU partnership projects. 

 

The office will fulfil its role in creative ways to stimulate enthusiasm in DCC for staff 

participation in EU partnership projects. This will include hosting ideas generation and 

‘pitching’ events, facilitating ‘matchmaking’ for potential projects and arranging for more 

experienced staff to mentor less experienced staff. 

 

Page 29



17 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

The office will also create its own communication platform to alert staff of opportunities, to 

share news of events and to showcase staff participating in EU partnership projects. The office 

will also include FAQs and ‘How to’ sections which could provide entry level guidance to staff. 

The office will periodically host public webinars to introduce key speakers from all over 

Europe on topics relevant to the thematic priorities for DCC. 

 

The office will coordinate the individual project activities of DCC with the activities of other 

pan-European structures such as Eurocities, the Covenant of Mayors and the Committee of 

the Regions. 

 

Project Approval 
DCC will encourage staff to seek opportunities to participate in EU partnership projects. 

Project ideas and draft proposals should be discussed at departmental/unit/office level with 

the purpose to assess the benefits and impacts that will result from potential projects. The 

resource implications should be clearly understood and agreed.  

 

To assist in the appraisal of project ideas, DCC will issue an EU project guidance and approval 

form which will contain the requests for details and the main criteria to be used for giving 

approval to commit DCC as a project partner. The completed form will be submitted with the 

signature of agreement of the relevant Executive Manager. The form will be processed by the 

EU Programmes Office of DCC. 

 

The main criteria will include: 

 Resource availability or acquisition 

 Additionality of the proposed project to the work of the Unit or Office and to the 

services and/or infrastructure provided by DCC 

 Alignment with the policies and objectives of the European Union and DCC 

 Potential for interdepartmental synergies 

 Potential for expansion and strengthening of networks 

 Potential for innovation and inclusion 

 Proposed project partners 

 Anticipated citizen and community impacts  

In seeking approval the EU Programmes Office will notify key departments such as Finance 

and Human Resources to secure their commitment to project support. 

 

Usually there is very limited time to get a proposal submitted given the need for concept 

agreement between partners and the internal processes in each partner to secure project 

approval. The EU Programmes Office will endeavour to process an application within one 

week upon receipt. 

 

Page 30



18 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

DCC may avail of an external evaluator to assess project proposals to assist in the project 

approval process. 

 

Once project approval has been given, the LEAR (Legal Entity Appointed Representative) in 

DCC will issue a pin number to the project applicant which will be required for the submission 

of the project proposal.  

 

Strategy Review  

The Strategy will be reviewed two years after establishment of the EU Programmes Office. 

 

The review may involve external assessment based on interviews with key stakeholders.  

 

The review will also require a staff survey similar to the one completed for development of 

this Strategy. 

 

At the end of the EU budget period 2021 to 2027, the implementation of the Strategy will be 

assessed with a view to develop a new Strategy for the next EU budget period. 

  

Page 31



19 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Conclusions: What will success look like? 

The Strategy will be a success if participation in EU partnership projects have resulted in 

significant growth in the learning of DCC staff with increased capacity in DCC to innovate in 

priority areas.  

 

The main intervention to drive this goal is the establishment of the EU Programmes Office 

that will provide support for staff participating or intending to participate in EU partnership 

projects as well as coordinate the networks of organisations that are part of the ecosystem of 

transnational multi-stakeholder EU Programmes. 

 

What support can staff expect from the EU Programmes Office? 

The office will work with staff on an individual basis to assess needs and level of support. For 

example, if the staff member wants to develop a proposal the office can assist with procuring 

external expertise or, if the staff member needs to build a network of partners, the office can 

assist with contacts and introductions. 

 

The office will set up a number of communication platforms with practical ‘how to’ 

information and step-by-step guidance for staff as well as updates on calls for proposals and 

news on project activities. 

 

The office will keep a central repository of EU Programmes information including internal 

project reports, contact details of project partners and the main links to various programmes 

and national contact points. 

 

What is the skills set that the office will add to the operations of DCC? 

The establishment of the staff will go hand-in-hand with the development of staff to ensure 

performance meet expectations. To this end external expertise will be contracted with a clear 

training needs analysis guiding the skills development process. 

 

Will the EU Programmes Office not just add another layer of bureaucracy? 

No. It will be pivotal to improve coordination and project participation and will shorten 

project approval periods as well as give clarity on the process of application and proposal 

submission.  

 

  

Page 32



20 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Appendix A: Staff Survey October 2020 

 

 

EU Programmes  
Internal Staff Survey Report:  

October 2020 
 

 

Survey of Dublin City Council participation in EU Programmes 2014 - 2020 

In late September 2020, the Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee Working 

Group on International Relations & European Affairs, sought to ascertain details on existing and past EU 

projects and EU funded national projects that Dublin City Council has participated in or applied to. This was 

in order to prepare for future EU funding and project opportunities and to gain an understanding of the 

level and scope of EU funded projects under the 2014 to 2020 EU budget cycle and to assist in raising 

awareness of funding opportunities in the new EU budget cycle (2021-2027).  

 

In the first week in October 2020, a survey questionnaire was issued to all departments and sections across 

the organisation. Submissions were received from 8 Departments and 14 sections.  

 
 Department Section  

1 Chief Executive Office Smart Cities 

2 Corporate Services and Transformation  

3 Culture, Recreation and Economic Services Economic Development & Enterprise 

4 Culture, Recreation and Economic Services Parks & Landscapes Services Division 

5 Culture, Recreation and Economic Services Dublin City Library & Archive 

6 Culture Recreation and Economic Services Arts Office 

7 Environment and Transportation - 

Transportation Operations 

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) 

8 Environment and Transportation  In association with Codema 

9 Housing and Community  Strategy and Research 

10 Housing  City Architects 

11 IS Management 

12 Planning and Property Development Dept  

13 Planning -  Docklands Unit 

14 South City Area Housing, Community and Emergency 

Services 

 

Page 33



21 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

All data was collated, reviewed and presented to the SPC Working Group on 12th October 

2020. Here are a summary of the findings: 

DCC departments/sections applied to participate in 50 Projects in the 7 Year Period: 2014 – 

2020, with a 70% Success Rate. 

 
The European Partnership Programmes in which DCC was a project partner: 
● Horizon 2020  
● Interreg North-West 
● Erasmus+  
● URBACT 

 
Some of the themes that were explored in the successful projects: 
● Energy: Retrofitting buildings 
● Energy: Industrial waste 
● Low-carbon transition roadmaps for citizens 
● Low-carbon transition biking initiatives 
● Migrant entrepreneurs 
● Social Innovation and the Social Economy 
● Visual Thinking Strategies in Arts Education 
● Social Inclusion through Arts Education 
● Flood relief nature-based solutions 
● Coastal eco-engineering 
● Public open data and ‘Big Data’ initiatives 
● Digital citizen engagement 

 
Potential Themes for future projects: 
 

Themes / topics to explore / address with other potential EU partners 
Smart Cities, Innovation, Citizen Engagement, Digital Transformation, Supporting SME's through 
Testbeds, Pilot site for Research and Innovation, Open Data, City Data, Economic Development, Living 
Labs, Innovative Procurement, Climate Action Calls, Smart Districts, Smart Tourism. 

Sustainable mobility 

Innovation, Entrepreneurship, Ecosystem Development, SME's, Sustainability, Social Economy, 
Circular Economy, Underrepresented Groups, 

New affordable housing and sustainable urban development 

Building retrofit, building sustainability 

Urban renewal, sustainable city development, discussion on the future of cities, implications of Covid-
19 for cities. 

Smart cities related to transportation, intelligent transport system. 

Arts Development, Policy and Strategy for Neighbourhoods and Cities; Artform related topics - visual 
art, drama, music etc;  Architecture, placemaking, and public art; arts development for children and 
young people, older people, arts festivals, social inclusion/diversity, audience development 

Biodiversity and Ecosystems, Climate Change Adaptation, Urban Forestry, Health, Green 
infrastructure, Nature-Based Solutions, Citizen science 

 
 

Page 34



22 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Survey response details of the projects which were successful in the current European programme 
2014 – 2020 are outlined below: 
 

No Project Title Funding Programme Project 
Period 

Focus and Outcome 

1 Build Upon 2 H2020 2020 - 2022 Energy retrofit of all buildings.  Framework 
for aligning EU, National and Municipal 
policies and programmes, improved 
reporting of energy saved, emmissions cut, 
money spent, co-benefits. 

2 RE-GREEN (there 
is a new project 
with same name!) 

H2020 2012-2014 Wide range of energy efficiency and carbon 
reduction initiatives.  Dublin outcome is a 
report on energy upgrade of housing stock. 

3 TEFCE - Towards a 
European 
Framework for 
Community 
Engagement in 
Higher Education 

European 
Commission, 
Erasmus+ 
Programme, Key 
Action 3, Forward 
LookingCooperation 
Projects (grant 
agreement: 590200-
EPP-1-2017-1-DE-
EPPKA3-PI-
FORWARD) 

2018-2020 Focus: The objective of the TEFCE project is to 
develop innovative and feasible policy tools 
at the university and European level for 
supporting, monitoring and assessing the 
community engagement of higher education 
institutions. Outcome: Development of 
resources - TEFCE Toolbox for Community 
Engagement for Community Engagement in 
Higher Education; Policy Brief: A European 
Framework for Community Engagement in 
Higher Education 

4 Diversity 
Connectors for 
Start-ups: The Art 
of Mixing 

The Council of 
Europe / 
Intercultural Cities 
Programme 

2016-2017 Focus: Migrant entrepreneurship and how 
incubators can act as diversity hubs / 
connectors for integrating migrants into local 
enterprise / innovation ecosystems.  
Outcome: Workshop hosted with project 
partners. Guidelines / project report 
produced and disseminated to enable 
interested parties to support incubators to be 
diversity connectors. 

5 European Social 
Economy Regions 
2018 pilot project 

European 
Commission - 
Commission Internal 
Market, Industry, 
Entrepreneurship 
and SMEs 
Directorate General - 
Project 

2018 Focus: Build networks of Social Economy and 
Social Innovation stakeholders and to raise 
awareness about the Social Economy at 
regional and local level. Outcome: Pilot 
Project complete across Europe. DCC led 
Dublin's involvement and hosted: 3 events to 
encourage networking, collaboration and 
awareness of the Dublin Social Economy 

6 European Social 
Economy Regions 
2019 Project 

European 
Commission's 
Directorate General 
for Internal Market, 
Industry, 
Entrepreneurship 
and SMEs  

2019 Focus: The aim is to build effective networks 
of social economy and social innovation 
stakeholders, raise awareness of EU support. 
DCC led Dublin's involvement and hosted: 3 
events to encourage networking, 
collaboration and awareness of the Dublin 
Social Economy (Social Enterprise Social; DC 
Social Enterprise Awards, Social Enterprise 
Summit 

Page 35



23 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

No Project Title Funding Programme Project 
Period 

Focus and Outcome 

7 European Social 
Economy Regions 
2019 Project 

European 
Commission's 
Directorate General 
for Internal Market, 
Industry, 
Entrepreneurship 
and SMEs  

2020 Focus: Social Economy awareness raising, 
collaboration, networking. Outcome: DCC led 
Dublin's involvement. Hosted SE Stories 
during LEW, Supported the DCU 
Hack4CHange as an ESER Dublin Event. DC 
Social Enterprise Awards will be held late 
October as a virtual event. Expo postponed 
because of C19 crisis.   

8 Permission to 
Wonder 

Erasmus+ 2017-2020 / 
36 months 

Learning From Visual Art - Supporting Schools 
to Implement the Visual Thinking Strategies 
Method  

9 Looking to 
Understand Social 
Inclusion  

Erasmus+  December 
2020-
December 
2022 (from 
2020 budget) 

Building on learning and research in previous 
Erasmus project, this project looks at image 
selection as a vehicle for supporting dialogue 
for social inclusion.  
 

10 Ecostructure European Regional 
Development Fund 
(ERDF) 

2017-2021 Ecostructure is producing stakeholder-
focused tools and resources designed to raise 
awareness and facilitate uptake of 
opportunities to employ coastal eco-
engineering solutions to climate change 
adaptation. It includes citizen science 
initiatives and two UNESCO Biospheres. 
 

11 DELI Diversity in 
the Economy and 
Local Integration 

Co-funded by the 
Council of Europe 
and the European 
Integration Fund 

2014-2015 Focus: Migrant Entrepreneurship / SMEs. 
Outcome: Development of: local partnership 
platforms, report, guidelines, tools 

12 Project Ireland 
2040 

DCCAE Climate 
Action Fund 

Ongoing Up to €20 million is being invested to capture 
waste heat generated at industrial facilities, 
in particular, the Dublin Waste to Energy 
Plant in Ringsend and piping it into homes 
and businesses in the Poolbeg, Ringsend and 
Docklands areas of Dublin city. 

13 EU H2020 
'Tomorrow' 
Project  

Horizon 2020 2019-2022 Creating a low-carbon transition roadmap for 
Dublin with citizens at the centre 

14 Decarb City Pipes Horizon 2020 2020-2023 Creating a roadmap to decarbonise the 
heating sector in Dublin with local working 
group (incl. DCCAE) 

15 Redap Project EU Era-Net Smart 
Energy Systems Fund 

2019-2021 Creating an online 'digital twin' of the Dublin 
energy demand 

16 Senator Horizon 2020 4 year 
project 
beginning 
September 
2020 

Project in partnership with An Post, UCD and 
DCC Traffic focusing on smart logistics / last 
mile delivery innovation 

Page 36



24 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

No Project Title Funding Programme Project 
Period 

Focus and Outcome 

17 BE-GOOD Interreg NWE May 2016 to 
May 2020 

BE-GOOD will deliver 11 pilots to extract 
commercial value from PSI. This is estimated 
at € 50 million and will also contribute to 
delivering 15% to 20% reduction of cost that 
big data is expected to enable. The project 
uses a novel demand driven approach, 
starting with public service delivery 
challenges across North West Europe. 

18 BE-GOOD - 
Capitalisation 
Project 

Interreg NWE Oct 2020 to 
March 2022 

The objective of the BE-GOOD Capitalisation 
Work Package is to build on and perpetuate 
delivered BE-GOOD innovative solutions, 
demonstrating their impact in new contexts, 
targeted sectors, new or wider geographical 
areas and engaging new Target Groups. 
Illustrating successful replicability or 
extension of BE-GOOD results and maturing 
the BE-GOOD Ecosystem. The capacity to 
generate business opportunities from public 
open-data will be further demonstrated and 
support organisational digital change based 
on BE-GOOD.  

19 Operandum Horizon 2020 Ongoing OPERANDUM will deliver tools and methods 
for the demonstration and market uptake of 
Nature-Based Solutions to reduce hydro-
meteorological risks. 
https://www.operandum-project.eu/ 

20 VAVEL H2020 Research and 
Innovation 
Framework 
Programme 

2015 - 2018 VaVel aims at making fundamental advances 
in addressing the most critical inefficiencies 
of current (big) data. The project received an 
excellent review from the project officer in 
January 2019 

21 HANDSHAKE Horizon 2020 2018 - 2021 Collaboration on innovation 

22 INSIGHT 
Intelligent 
Synthesis and 
Real-Time 
Response using 
Massive 

FP7  September 
2012 - 
August 2015 

INSIGHT seeked to make use of data sets that 
DCC generate which include SCATS traffic 
data, Dublin Bus location data etc. In using 
these data sets INSIGHT sought to identify in 
real-time where issues arise in the road 
network e.g. unusual congestion patterns, 
flooding and other unusual weather events 
that cause issues along the road network. 
This information was intended to be used in 
the Traffic Control Room to assist with traffic 
management in the Dublin City area. Project 
was viewed as successful by the project 
officer and the consortium was encouraged 
to continue working together. As a result the 
VAVEL proposal was successfully submitted 
and funded to a successful conclusion. 

Page 37



25 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

No Project Title Funding Programme Project 
Period 

Focus and Outcome 

23 FLOW Horizon 2020 2015 - 2018 Congestion reduction through walking and 
cycling 

24 SENATOR H2020 2020-2024 The idea is to use Urban Consolidation 
Centres (UCCs) which take in large 
consignments of packages, and redistribute 
these in smaller consignments on low or no 
emission transport modes such as cargo bikes 
and e-assist vehicles. All of which will be 
enabled by new technology including satellite 
tracking of freight, a cloud-based IoT 
platform, and route optimisation algorithms 
which should provide for a more efficient and 
environmentally sustainable urban logistics 
system. 

25 Housing First 
Programme 
Evaluation 

EC PROGRESS 2011-2013 Transnational Programme Evaluation 
resulting 5 project meetings; knowledge 
transfers; 1 public synthesis conferences and 
publication 

26 ReaLsMs H2020 2017-2021 Citizen Engagement and Digital Technology 
Impacts 

27 ROUTE-TO-PA H2020 2014-2018 Encouraging the publication and promotion 
of open data, through citizen engagement 
and data visualisation tools. 

28 Synchronicity H2020 2019-2020 Dublin was a pilot site for rolling out smart 
bike lights crowdsourcing cycling data on 
near-miss, frequency of routes information 
and road surface quality as part of a wider 
European project. 

29 Smart Impact  URBACT 2016-2018 Development and launch of a smart district - 
Smart Docklands 

30 WiFi4EU https://wifi4eu.ec.eu
ropa.eu 

2020-2023 The WiFi4EU initiative provides municipalities 
with the opportunity to apply for vouchers to 
the value EUR 15 000. The vouchers are to be 
used to install Wi-Fi equipment in public 
spaces within the municipality that are not 
already equipped with a free Wi-Fi hotspot. 
Dublin successfully received 4 vouchers and 
the Dept. of Rural Affairs and Comms will 
match fund €60,000. 

31 iSCAPE H2020 2015-2019 It is envisaged that Dublin City will be used as an 
end user test bed for the out puts of the iSCAPE 
project. It will provide and facilitate access to its 
air pollution monitoring network and 
monitoring datasets. If will facilitate the 
identification of test sites and where possible 
provide access and logistic support for these 
sites. It will provide historical datasets here 
possible to facilitate 

Page 38



26 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

No Project Title Funding Programme Project 
Period 

Focus and Outcome 

32 OPERANDUM H2020 2017-2022 Focused on introducing nature based 
solutions to flood risk areas and monitoring 
the impact of these installations. 

33 NesT H2020 2021-2024 Follow on from ReaLsMs project looking at 
citizen engagement around digital 
technologies in smart districts. 

34 FLOW Horizon 2020 2015 - 2018 Congestion reduction through walking and 
cycling 

35 HANDSHAKE Horizon 2020 2018 - 2021 Collaboration on innovation and knowledge 
transfer on cycling 

 

 

  

Page 39



27 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Appendix B: Agendas of Staff Information Sharing Sessions and Session with 

Councillors 
 

Session 1: 10 November 2020: Regional & Urban Development 

 

 

  

Page 40



28 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Session 2: 12 November 2020: Horizon Europe 

 

 

 

  

Page 41



29 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Session 3: 17 November 2020: Social & Culture 

 

 

 

  

Page 42



30 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Session 4: 19 November 2020: Green & Smart 

 

 

  

Page 43



31 | P a g e         E U  P r o g r a m m e  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  2 0 2 1  -  2 0 2 7   

Session with Councillors: 25 November 2020: Full Council Briefing 

 

 

Page 44



Kieran Mahon, Smart DCU Projects Facilitator

More info: kieran@smartdcu.ie

Smart City testbed                   Fast-tracking Smart City Innovation

P
age 45



Smart DCU part of the Smart Dublin Ecosystem 

Smart Dublin is an initiative of the four Dublin Local Authorities to use new 

technologies to improve services and enhance quality of life in the Dublin Region
Croke Park Stadium Testbed (83,000 capacity)

University Campus Testbed

P
age 46



Not just a University, a Microcosm of a city

P
age 47



• Biggest research centre of its type in Europe

• Ireland’s largest SFI-funded research centre

• Co-led by DCU

• Dedicated Smart City programme in 

collaboration with Connect and Lero SFI 

research centres

• Insight DCU expertise includes: 

• Machine Learning & AI

• Computer Vision

• Information Fusion

INSIGHT can enhance the value of your Smart 

City propositions. 

No data analytics challenge is too big for them

University College Dublin

Dublin City University

University College Cork

NUI Galway

https://www.insight-centre.org/

SFI RESEARCH CENTRE FOR DATA ANALYITICS

A gateway to 

P
age 48

https://www.insight-centre.org/


DCU working with Croke Park Smart Stadium for many years

Croke Park Smart Stadium where the ebb and flow of 83,000 fans can be used to stress test Smart City Innovations

P
age 49



2020 Achievements – From Campus to international deployment

Nov 2020

Smart DCU piloted Luna E-Scooter precise positioning

Now deployed in a UK City

(Northamptonshire City Council)

Smart DCU pilot 

Micromobility

P
age 50



2020 Achievements – From Campus to Dublin City deployment

Nov 2020

Smart DCU piloted Moby shared E-Bike intercampus travel

• Now deployed in Dublin City

• Insight Centre of Data Analytics now analysing E-Bike usage patterns
Smart DCU pilot 

Micromobility

P
age 51



2020 Achievements – Solar Prospecting research 

Solar Prospecting expertise

Interest in Solar Prospecting has also triggered interest in 

understanding how they can collaborate with Smart DCU

Established relationships 

Detailed weather station datasets

PV (Battery storage)

Sustainability

Croke Park roof analysis

Solar Prospecting research

P
age 52



Challenge: How to count people in a crowd without analysing any 

Personal Identifying Information (PII)

Smart CU has piloted a self contained unit that processes images in real 

time with no storage of video or images.

Mould Sensors 

Challenge: How to ensure good indoor air quality 

Smart DCU are piloting the use of Ambisense environmental IoT sensors 

to report on indoor air quality and the factors that trigger mould.

Crowd Counter 

2020 Achievements – IoT monitoring

Crowd Counting

Both of these projects complement each other as they have the ability to measure indoor (CO2) and outdoor congestion

P
age 53



Self learning IoT sensors

Environmental 
IoT sensors over LoRa

WiFi Hotspot

Location reporting via sigfox

Environmental 
IoT sensors over Vodafone NB-IoT

Data Analytics

Vehicle telemetry

IoT sensors on the Hydrogen Bus

P
age 54



DCU World’s first designated Autism Friendly University

Navigating the Campus can be stressful for an Autistic person

We are building a seamless Outdoor / Indoor Pathfinder

Indoor location reporting will utilise WiFi 6 Round Trip Time (802.11mc)

IoT sensors will report on sound levels, congestion, etc.

Routing will be in the most Autism Friendly way

Built using the principles of Universal Design (benefit all)

Sound detectors Crowd Counting

Autism Friendly 

Intelligent routing

Customisable interface

AR enhancements

VR route simulations

Environmental sensors Students Timetable
GPS/GNNS

P
age 55



2020 Achievements – Bentley funding a Digital Twin Centre of Excellence

June 2020 Kieran submitted a proposal to 

Bentley for a collaborate with Smart DCU Dec 2020 Bentley has agreed to sponsor a DCU Centre of Excellence

Confidential 

P
age 56



% Room Temperatures 
hot perfect cold

empty full overcrowded

% Room occupancy 

Pop up plans with real-time data 

Gully status (water level correct)

We are building 3D model of the Campus that will be overlaid with real time IoT sensor data
To be used for operational efficiency, assist decision making, planning and pathfinding, etc.

Smart DCU – Building a Digital Twin

P
age 57



Adviser to the ‘DCU Future Tech Building’ team

Adviser to the ‘Autism Friendly University Design Guide’ Team

Invited to give a talk on Digital Twins to the DCU Business School

Guest presenter at a South East Asia Conference 

(They were very interested in the concept of Smart Districts)

2020 Achievements – Established Reputation local and International

Autism Friendly 
University Design Guide 

DCU Future Tech Building (2022)

A World’s First to be published Jan 2021
“Technology bringing good to humanity”

P
age 58



Smart DCU 2021 Plans

New projects 

(Working assumptions E-Scooters to be made legal)

 Intercampus E-Scooter sharing pilot
 Computer Vision for hazard detection
 High precision real time location reporting
 Insight Centre of Data Analytics analysis

 Seamless Outdoor Indoor Pathfinding prototype

 DCU become a testbed for the EU Carbon Neutral Cities by 2030 initiative

 Establish the Centre of Excellence for Data Capture and Research 

P
age 59



Kieran Mahon, Smart DCU Projects Facilitator

More info: kieran@smartdcu.ie

Smart City testbed                   Fast-tracking Smart City Innovation

P
age 60



Dublin City Development Plan -

Introduction to the Review Process

.

Deirdre Scully,

Deputy City Planner

P
age 61



Requirements for Development Plans

• The Planning Act specifies content of Development Plans (Sc. 10). 

The list in the section includes the core strategy, the zoning of land, 

provision of infrastructure, conservation, environmental protection, 

and culture amongst others. 

• Planning Act also require compliance/alignment within the Draft 

Plan with:

• National Planning Framework  (NPF)

• Regional Spatial & Economic Strategy for the Region (RSES)

• Transport Strategy for the Greater Dublin Area

• SPPRs issued in Guidelines by the Minister

• Development Plan Guidelines issued by the Department of 

Housing, Planning & Local Government set out a range of content 

that Plans should address.

P
age 62



Context

What's different this time?

- Specific elements of the NPF, RSES and Ministerial  Directions 

are now required to go in, such as  the directions on height 

policy and to undertake a Housing Need Demand Assessment.

- Role of the Office of the Planning Regulator

- Covid challenges- Retail, city centre, culture

- Possible future role of the LDA

- Need for greater emphasis on Climate Change actions

P
age 63



The Process

• The review process commenced on the 15th of December 2020. 

• The making of the new City Development Plan will include 4 key 

stages:

1. Pre Draft (Consultation 15th Dec 2020 to 22nd Feb 2021)

2. Draft Plan & Submissions (consultation Nov 2021 – Feb 

2022) 

3. Material Amendments (consultation Aug 2022 - Sept 2022)

4. Adoption of the Plan (November 2022).

Please note all dates outlined are provisional at this stage and may need to be adjusted 

P
age 64



1. Pre- Draft Strategic Issues Consultation

- 15th of Dec 2020 to 22nd of Feb 2021.

- Strategic Issue Paper (approx. 60 pages)

- Simplified Consultation Leaflet (NALA approved) 

- Series of live webinars scheduled (5)

- Social and traditional media plans to draw attention

- CE Report on submissions due on 19th of April 2021, following 

which the Members have 10 weeks to give directions for the Plan

2. Draft Plan.

- CE Draft Plan presented to Cllrs 20th of Sept 2021 following which 

there are 8 weeks to make changes to finalise the Draft Plan.

- Draft Plan is placed on display 29th of Nov ‘21 – 18th of Feb 2022

- Detail of display and consultation to be decided in context of covid

- CE Report  on submission presented on the 13th of May 2022.

3. Amendments go on display from 26th of Aug to the  23rd of Sept 2022

4. New Plan made by November 2022, and comes into force 6 weeks 

later.

Please note that dates are provisional

P
age 65



Headline Issues

• Climate Change 

• Implementing NPF and RSES

• Balancing need for compact growth with need 
to protect amenities

• Delivering high quality mixed use new 
neighbourhoods in key growth areas and 
supporting urban villages

• Housing Supply – Social, Affordable, market 
provided.

• Regeneration of key Neighbourhoods

• Community & Culture- investment, growth

P
age 66



Headline Issues

• Height and densification and compliance with 
Section 28 Guidelines

• Protecting the world class heritage of the City

• Supporting and expanding green infrastructure 
and biodiversity in the City 

• Employment and Retail 

• Planning for a post covid environment

• Movement, Public realm and quality public 
spaces

P
age 67



Economy & Retail

• Key Issues:

- Vitality of retail in the City particularly the City centre

- Provision of flexible quality office development in right locations

- Intensification and clustering of employment lands as per RSES

- Location of employment types in the City

- Supporting third level education

- Key role of FDI and of tourism for the city

- Impact of Covid.

- New spaces for innovation, enterprise within mixed neighbourhoods

• How should the Plan support economic growth and employment for the 

City?

• What are the key sectors that need support & how?

• How should plan to address economic deprivation within certain parts 

of the City?

• How to we support retail and the night time economy?

P
age 68



www.dublincitydevelopmentplan.ie

P
age 69





 

1 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Dublin City 
Promoting Economic Development 

2021 

Page 71



 

2 

 

Page 72



 

Dublin City Council: Promoting Economic Development 2021 
 
 

The Economic Development Office has produced this document to set out the key work that is planned 

to be undertaken this year in supports of its role to promote Economic Development in Dublin City.  

This work is designed to inform and support the work of the members of the Economic and Enterprise 

Strategic Policy Committee and its working groups.  The programme will see the development and 

implementation of a range of policies and practices that will deliver on our strategic priorities in this 

area.  

 

The adaptive nature of this approach means that we will be able to identify emergent strategies and 

responses to external shocks, through a range of policy measures and interventions, designed to make 

a positive difference to the lives of those who live, work, visit and invest in Dublin City. 

 

This strategy is a living document and can be added to, amended or adapted, depending on changing 

economic conditions or with the introduction of new resources or responsibilities. It is accompanied 

by an annual work programme, which will detail the work to be undertaken by the office in 2021 in 

collaboration with internal and external stakeholders that will be reported on to members of this SPC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 

Page 73



 

 Contents: 

 

1. Forward: Head of Economic Development and Enterprise ......................................................................5 

2. Our Strategy: 2021 ....................................................................................................................................6 

3. The Pillars of Economic Development: .....................................................................................................8 

4. Work Programme: 2021 ........................................................................................................................ 10 

5. Our Role & Resources: ........................................................................................................................... 14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 

Page 74



 

1. Forward: Head of Economic Development and Enterprise 
 

Dublin remains one of the most vibrant Cities in the world, blending a unique mix of culture, history 

and enterprise, which adds to a rich tapestry of life attracting people to live, work, visit and invest in 

our capital City.  Dublin is the engine, which continues to drive the national economy, supporting job 

creation through entrepreneurship; indigenous SME’s and International businesses who have chosen 

to locate here.  It is critical that we champion the needs of Dublin, to secure the resources required to 

build on existing strengths, address areas that require development and create a resilient city of the 

future.  We will continue to work to contribute to the changing dynamic of what the “City of the 

Future” looks like in a changing global context, promoting ways that our city is demonstrating 

innovations in how we live and work.  We are examining the outputs from the Dublin City Reset 

Summit held last November.  Many of the contributors spoke of how we need to respond to the 

changing nature of society, work and employment, developing a digital city with a smart public realm 

and sustainable transport infrastructure, and a green city that meets the needs of its citizens, 

residents, visitors and students. 

 

In Dublin City Council, we are responsible for providing a wide range of Local Government services 

such as Planning, Parks, Housing, Waste, Libraries, and Environmental services. However, the 

promotion of economic development is emerging as one of our key functions, as it has the potential 

for a significant positive or negative impact on the communities we serve and the services we provide.  

Through our work with the Economic Development and Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee and the 

Economic Development & Enterprise Office, we will continue to engage and collaborate with key 

stakeholders at local, national and international levels to build capacity and champion the needs of 

the City and benchmark our progress against other comparable international Cities. 

 

This document is designed to focus the resources of the Economic Development Office into areas 

where we can make the greatest positive impact for the City and assist in directing information, 

networking, projects, events, research and policy. The work programme sets out a series of high level 

activities and objectives at local and regional level that will be used to measure and report on progress 

throughout the year.  Part of the work planned for this year will involve drawing up a new Economic 

Strategy for the coming years.  I would like to thank the members of the team and senior management 

and members of the SPC and other stakeholders who are instrumental in ensuring a successful year 

ahead. 
 

Greg Swift 
Head of Economic Development and Enterprise 
Dublin City Council  
January 2021 

Page 5 

Page 75



 

2. Our Strategy: 2021 
 

To Support a City of Opportunity that Encourages an Inclusive and 
Sustainable Economy 

 
The Economic Development Office (EDO) of Dublin City Council has responsibility for the promotion 

of economic development in Dublin City. Our vision above sets out our overarching objective, which 

involves using our resources, knowledge and expertise, to make a positive difference for those who 

live, work, visit and invest in Dublin City. Our mission is; 

 

 To support initiatives that will improve the quality of people's lives 
 

 To enhance the ability of the City to attract and retain world-class talent through Placemaking. 
 

 To promote Dublin as an attractive place to live, work, visit and invest. 
 

 To foster a culture of creativity and innovation in a globally connected City. 
 

 To engage with economic stakeholders to maximise the alignment and impact of resources. 
 
 

We will achieve this by engaging, promoting, facilitating and collaborating with internal and external 

stakeholders, across a specific range of interventions designed to deliver on this vision. These 

interventions will be identified and assessed with reference to 4 pillars of Economic Development, 

which have been selected to offer clarity and focus to our role. These pillars were identified following 

consultation with a range of stakeholders and the completion of a SWOT analysis. 

 
 
 

Our interventions will largely be project based and seek to achieve specific, measurable, 

achievable, relevant and time bound (SMART) outcomes. 

 

Page 6 

Page 76



 

 

 

Projects considered by EDO will be assessed based on their fit with the 4 pillars, their ability to “make 

a difference” and their potential benefits and the resources available to deliver them. Where possible 

within the available resources, attempts will be made to assess the economic impact of projects in 

terms of engagement, job creation, value added & societal benefits. 

 

As part of this work programme we will carry out or commission research which will inform our 

understanding and clarity of the 4 pillars, and we will disseminate the findings of this research to 

inform decision making and policy creation. 

 

The EDO is responsible for contributing to, delivering & reporting on a range of policy initiatives at 

local and national levels including, the Dublin City Corporate Plan 2020 to 2024, Dublin City Local 

Economic & Community Plan (LECP) 2016 to 2021, The Dublin City Development Plan and The Dublin 

Regional Enterprise Plan. 

 

The EDO reports into the Assistant City Manager for Culture, Recreation & Economic Services of Dublin 

City Council. The EDO also report to and is responsible for the management of the Economic 

Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee (SPC). 

 

This strategy is designed to focus the resources of the Economic Development Office into areas where 

we can make the greatest positive impact for the City and assist in directing projects, research and 

policy. The strategy is accompanied by a work programme designed to coordinate the activities and 

objectives at local and national level that will be used to measure and report on how economic activity 

and resources are contributing to addressing existing and future challenges and in improving the 

experience of citizens and visitors to this great capital City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 

Page 77



 

3. The Pillars of Economic Development: 
 

The 4 key pillars set out below encapsulate our Vision and Mission for the City and assist in categorising 

the areas where we will focus our resources. 

 

1. Human Development: 

 
Human development is the process of enlarging people’s choices. Their three essential choices are to 

lead a long and healthy life, to acquire knowledge and to have access to the resources needed for a 

decent standard of living. Additional choices, highly valued by many people, range from political, 

economic and social freedom to opportunities for being creative and productive and enjoying personal 

self—respect and guaranteed human rights. (OECD) 

 

2. Placemaking & Clusters: 

 
Placemaking is a multi-faceted approach to the planning, design and management of public spaces.  It 

capitalises on a local community's assets, inspiration, and potential, with the intention of creating 

public spaces that promote people's health, happiness, and wellbeing. A business cluster is a 

concentration of interconnected enterprise, suppliers, and associated institutions in a particular field. 

Clusters are considered to increase the productivity with which companies can compete, nationally 

and globally. 

 

3. Promotion & Investment: 

 
The promotion and investment component of economic development is critical for the success of any 

City and this is even truer for Dublin given the open nature of its economy. Dublin City Council can 

play a significant role in attracting foreign direct investment (FDI) into the City by supporting the 

activities of national agencies such as the IDA. Dublin City Council will actively promote the City as a 

key international destination for business and enterprise though promotional tools such as the 

Dublin.ie platform and the Dublin Economic Monitor. We will also develop concierge services for 

Dublin to provide potential investors with key information and contacts for the City. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 
 

Page 78



 

4. Climate & Innovation: 

 
Dublin like many international cities is creating a road map for a green recovery, our ambition is to 

move to a clean, circular economy to restore biodiversity and reduce pollution.  Innovation will be a 

key component in how we respond to global challenges and identify local opportunities that can 

provide solutions that will work in adopting circularity in how our city operates.  To be innovative, an 

idea must be replicable at an economical cost and must satisfy a specific need. It involves deliberate 

application of information, imagination and initiative in deriving greater or different values from 

resources. The Economy of Dublin is constantly Transforming and evolving as we shift to new patterns 

of living and working such as Circular Economy, Digital Economy, Smart Cities, Green Cities and the 

Gig Economy. These societal shifts will result in disruptive solutions emerging to meet our changing 

needs and the City eco-system will need to be able to adapt to support and develop these 

transformations. 

 

Figure 2 below represents a categorisation of sample projects identified by EDO under the pillars of 

Economic Development. 

 
Figure 1: High Level Projects under each of the 4 Pillars of Economic Development 

 

Human 
Development 

Placemaking 
& Clusters 

Promotion 
& 
Investment 

Climate & 
Innovation  

Re-set Summit 

 

 

Skills – Future Work 

 

 

Your Dublin Your 
Voice 

Enterprise Space 

 

 

Dublin Belfast 
Economic 
Corridor 

 

 

Dublin Region 
Enterprise Plan 

 

Dublin 
Economic 
Monitor 

 

Dublin Place 
Brand 

 

EU 
Programme 

Participation 
Office 

 

Smart Dublin 

 

 

MODOS 

 

 

 

Responsible 
Innovation 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 9

Page 79



 

 

4. Work Programme: 2021 

 
The Economic and Enterprise eco-system in Dublin city is strengthened, through engagement with a 

wide range of stakeholders, designed to improve and support various policy initiatives, projects, 

events and research documents.  In furtherance of this work we have identified a number of high level 

projects under each of the Pillars that we are confident when delivered, will result in positive change, 

based on the understanding built up through our networks, knowledge, resource capacity and 

expertise. 

 
 

1. Human Development: 

 
Summit Series: Dublin Re-set Summit: (Research, Promotion, Future of Dublin) 

 
The Economic Development Office designed and delivered the Dublin Re-set Summit event as an 

initiative of the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC in November 2020.  Work planned this 

year will capture some of the key comments and contributions made during the Summit.  This content 

when complete will be disseminated in Q 1 2021.  Work will also be carried out to build on the success 

of this Summit and to plan and prepare for the 2021 Summit to be held in Q 4 2021. 

 

Skills - Future of Work (Dublin Region Skills Forum - FutureScope) 

 
The Economic Development Office contribute to the work of the Dublin Regional Skills Forum by acting 

as a member of the Forum.  Through working with the Forum we assist in the development of actions 

necessary to ensure that the future skills demands for the Dublin region are being planned for and 

met though engagement with employers and the higher and further education sector.   

 

FutureScope is an event that engages business leaders and entrepreneurs in sharing current trends 

and future insights that have the potential to transform our cities, businesses and enterprises.  Dublin 

City Council will work with Dublin BIC, to provide themes and learning on the topics of SmartDublin, 

GreenDublin, Local Enterprise, Dublin Place Brand and Economic Development.  The future of work 

and the changing landscape for global cities will be addressed through our support and programming 

of the FutureScope event scheduled for 2021.  This work will be carried out collaboratively with Dublin 

BIC, the Impactor and with our colleagues in Smart Dublin, the Dublin Place Brand team and the 

Climate Action Office. 

 

Page 10 

 

 

 

Page 80



 

 

Your Dublin Your Voice: (Dublin Survey Panel) 

 
We will plan and conduct four surveys seeking the views of those living in Dublin who are members of 

the Your Dublin Your Voice panel.  Survey findings will be disseminated to inform decision making and 

policy and strategy development. 

 

2. Placemaking and Clusters 

 
Enterprise Space: (Research, Dublin Region Enterprise Plan) 

 
The diversity of the start-up and scaling community adds vibrancy, creativity and builds innovation 

and employment capacity in the city.  Enterprise space supports this community and responds to 

threats such as increasing rents, while responding to opportunities to reimagine the use of these 

spaces with the growing demand for remote working and other developments. An enterprise space 

review was undertaken by the ED capturing details of enterprise spaces operating in the Dublin Region 

and capturing their plans for future development.  The findings of this research were presented to 

members of the SPC and the Dublin Region Enterprise Plan Steering Group. There is scope to gain 

greater insights into the important role played by Enterprise Spaces in supporting entrepreneur and 

early stage businesses and to continue to support and promote specialist start up spaces and clusters 

in the city and the Dublin region.   

 

Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor: (Engagement with seven local authorities and two universities) 

 
The three representatives from Dublin City Council will participate in the Advisory Group established 

as part of the governance structure for the Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor.  2021 will see further 

work undertaken at Chief Executive and Steering Group level to further the work of the DBEC.  This 

work will be guided by the recommendations of the  

 

Dublin Region Enterprise Plan: DREP 

 
Dublin City Council will operate as one of the key stakeholders of the Dublin Region Enterprise Plan 

led by the Department of Enterprise Trade and Employment.  In collaboration with the other 

stakeholders, work will be undertaken in Q 1 to identify actions to be delivered under the Dublin 

Region Enterprise Plan 2021.  The objectives and actions identified, will be designed to support the 

economic recovery of the region, following the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and Brexit.  This work 

will also consider the opportunities and actions required under the green business agenda to build a 

resilient and circular Dublin region. 

 

Page 11 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

3. Promotion and Investment: 

 
Dublin Economic Monitor: DEM 
The Dublin Economic Monitor is an initiative of Dublin City Council, led and co-ordinated by the ED office 

on behalf of the four Dublin LA’s.  The DEM is a key project that captures and publishes reliable, regular 

and accessible economic data for the Dublin region on a quarterly basis.  The initial data sets have been 

reviewed and added to where possible.  Data sets that are unique to the DEM have also been developed 

such as the Spending Pulse data.  Four editions of the DEM are planned for publication in 2021, along with 

the further enhancement of the website www.dublineconomy.ie and the development of a communication 

plan.  On-going engagement with the other three Dublin LA’s is key to building on this important work.  

 

Dublin Place Brand: 
The award winning city branding website Dublin.ie promotes Dublin as an attractive city to live, work, 

study and invest in.  The place branding team continue to increase engagement with an international 

and local audience through adding valuable content to the website and through social media postings.  

Engagement is also built up through dialogue and collaborative projects with key stakeholders 

nationally and internationally.  In 2020 the team delivered a series of impactful campaigns designed 

to support front line workers and local businesses and to promote safe behaviour in the city during 

the Covid 19 pandemic.  This year the team will develop a growth strategy, identifying a number of 

areas where they will take action, to further build on the value that has been built up through the 

Dublin place brand   

 

DCC EU Programme Participation Strategy: 

Work will be undertaken to implement the recommendations of the EU Programme Participation 

Strategy that was developed following the implementation of a three step work programme, agreed 

with members of the International Relations and EU Affairs Working Group of the SPC.  The 

establishment of an office designed to support staff and managers who wish to align EU Programme 

objectives that will add value to corporate and departmental objectives, is one of the key 

recommendations of the strategy.  The office, once established, will raise awareness of funding 

opportunities, strengthen working relationships with EU programming national and international 

contact points, produce reports and profile successful project engagement.  It will also seek to address 

gaps in knowledge and experience to build capacity and strengthen governance for engagement in 

future programmes.  The office once established will be an asset to Dublin City Council is aligning 

strategic objectives with key European Funding and Development programmes assisting us in 

developing to a Green and Digital city economy.  

 

Page 12 
 
 

Page 82

http://www.dublineconomy.ie/


 

 

4. Climate and Innovation: 

 
Social Enterprise: (Responsible Innovation Summit, Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards) 
Social Enterprise remains a significantly under represented sector in Ireland. It has the capability to 

deliver unique, tailored and environmentally innovative solution to societal challenges. Dublin City 

Council will support for-profit and not-for- profit social enterprise and assist them in developing their 

business capacity.  This work will be carried out through working with other stakeholders at national 

and local level.  Delivering the Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards with Inner City Enterprise and with 

the support of the Department of Rural and Community Development, training, peer to peer learning 

and event designed to network, promote and support existing and new social enterprises operating in 

the Dublin region. 

 

Green Business: Responsible Innovation - MODOS 
A series of work is planned this year to support Dublin businesses to transition to the circular economy, to 

raise awareness of the opportunities and challenges contained in the European Green Deal and to profile 

businesses that are leading the way in making their businesses more sustainable and circular.   

As part of this work we will collaborate with the Impactor who have developed the Responsible Innovation 

Summit, the Business Spirit Awards and the new Profit with Purpose publication. 

 

Smart Dublin: Dublin as a Test Bed for Smart Innovation 
The wide ranging work programme developed by the Smart Dublin team will be reported on through our SPC 

meetings in 2021. The Smart Dublin Team have built a network of stakeholders who participate in this 

programming by bringing their expertise to bear from industry, community, universities and public sector 

organisations.   

 

Many of the Smart Dublin projects are drawing on and contributing to European knowledge and 

understanding through participation in programmes with other European partners.  The findings and 

learning from these projects will be shared and disseminated at SPC meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 

 

Page 83



 

1 

5. Our Role & Resources: 
 

The Economic development office is responsible for the promotion of Economic Development in the 

Dublin City Council administrative area. Our remit derives from the introduction of the Local Economic 

& Community Development Plan (LECP) as part of the Local Government Reform Act 2014 

The Economic Development Office is the sister office and closely aligned to the operation and the 

activities of the Local Enterprise Office Dublin City, which also emerged from the Act following the 

dissolution of the County and City Enterprise Boards. Both offices are part of a larger Dublin City 

Council department, Culture, Recreation and Economic Services and report into the Assistant Chief 

executive with responsibility for this department. The Work of the office can be broadly broken into 3 

streams; Policy, Projects & Research.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Produced by the Economic Development Office, Dublin City Council  
www.dublincity.ie/economicdevelopment 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14 

Page 84

http://www.dublincity.ie/economicdevelopment


  

SPC WORKING GROUP – INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS & 
EUROPEAN AFFAIRS COMPLETION REPORT – DEC 2020 

1 

 

 

Strategic Policy Committee 
Working Group: 

International Relations & European Affairs 

Overview Report for Economic 
Development and Enterprise SPC   

12th January 2021 
 

 

1 Establishment of the Working Group  

At the November 2019 Economic Development & Enterprise SPC meeting, it was agreed that two working 

groups would be established.  One group would address Tourism, City Markets & Night Time Economy; and 

the other group would address a work programme relating to International Relations & European Affairs.  

Membership of both working group was agreed at the February 2020 meeting of the Economic Development 

and Enterprise SPC. The International Relations and European Affairs working group held their initial scoping 

meeting to discuss proposed work programme on 3rd March. A discussion took place at this meeting around 

the draft Terms of Reference document, including the requirement for all proposed working group to be 

reviewed and approved by the Corporate Policy Group (CPG).  A meeting of the CPG took place on 26th June 

where the Terms of Reference and Membership was agreed. Richard Shakespeare initially chaired the group, 

with Anthony Flynn leading the administrative team supporting the work of the group.  Cllr Mary Freehill was 

agreed as the Chair of the Group at the June meeting of the working group; with Anthony Flynn as the lead 

official for the working group. 
 

2   Duration & Reporting  

The initial timeframe of the working group was agreed at 6 months, with the timeframe commencing on 26th 

June following the CPG approval.  It was also agreed that regular reports would be provided to the SPC to 

ensure focus and to update on progress on the proposed work programme.   
 

3 Work Programme 

Having considered a number of areas where the work of the group might focus, the group agreed that they 

would like to focus on 2 potential areas for consideration that would not overlap with the work of other SPC’s 

or Working Groups:
 

 Financial & Funding Opportunities for Dublin– EU Funding Programme 2021 to 2027 

 EuroCities & Other Relevant Networking Opportunities  - Learning from other cities 

A review progress meeting was scheduled for 7th April but was postponed due to COVID19 restrictions and 

was rescheduled to 18th June. This meeting reviewed the proposed work programme in response to the 

significant impact of COVID19 on International Relations & European affairs. The proposed working group 

was reviewed, approved and established by the Corporate Policy Group on 26th June 2020. 
 

4 Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference were agreed with the working group members and outlined the objectives, membership, 

proposed work programme, timeframe and secretariat support of the working group. The initial timeframe of 

the working group was agreed at 6 months, which would then be examined on an as needs basis. The 6 month 

timeframe commenced following the CPG approval which would be to year end. It was agreed regular reporting 

to SPC would be provided to ensure focus and progression on the proposed work programme. This is the final 

progress report to the SPC.   

Page 85



  

SPC WORKING GROUP – INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS & 
EUROPEAN AFFAIRS COMPLETION REPORT – DEC 2020 

2 

 

5 Membership of the Working Group 

The membership of the International Relations & European Affairs SPC Working Group is outlined below: 

Working Group Members: 

SPC Representative Member:  Cllr. Mary Freehill, Dublin City Council (Chair); 

SPC Representative Member:  Cllr. Nial Ring, Dublin City Council; 

SPC Sectoral Member:  Aiden Sweeney, IBEC; (Business Rep) 

SPC Sectoral Member:  Odran Reid, Northside Homecare Service; (PPN Rep) 

Dublin City Council:    Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief Executive Officer 

 

Supported by Officials: 

Anthony Flynn, Executive Manager CRES; 

Greg Swift, Head of Enterprise & Economic Development, Dublin City Council; 

Mary MacSweeney, Deputy Head of Enterprise & Economic Development, Dublin City Council;  

Ciara O hAodha, Senior Economic Development Officer; 

Grainne Kelly, International Relations Officer. 

 

6 Meetings held:  

 

Date: Meeting Type: Overview:: 

3rd March 2020 Initial Scoping Meeting Minutes Attached 

18th June  Progress Scoping Meeting  Minutes Attached 

29th July  Info Sharing Meeting – EMRA & EIB  Agenda Attached 

4th September Progress Meeting  Minutes Attached 

28th September Progress Meeting – EU Strategy Proposed Approach Minutes Attached 

12th October Progress Meeting  Minutes Attached 

25th November Full Council Briefing – EU Programmes Overview Agenda Attached 

18th December  Review Meeting  Minutes Attached  

 

7 Work Programme Completion   

March – June 2020: 

A scoping paper was prepared by EDO, revised in response to COVID19 and presented to the working 

group at their progress scoping meeting held on 18th June.  A discussion was held on how best to progress 

the work programme which would focus on two key areas.   

 Financial & Funding Opportunities for Dublin– EU Funding Programme 2021 to 2027 

 EuroCities & Other Relevant Networking Opportunities  - Learning from other cities 

July 2020: 

In order to examine both elements in greater detail the Eastern Midland Regional Assembly (EMRA), the Irish 

Regions European Office (IREO) and the European Investment Bank were invited to present to the working 

group on 29th July.  The meeting was held of the 29th July 2020 held via MS Teams.   

Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly (EMRA) presentation: 

Mr. Jim Conway, Director of EMRA, Ms. Teresa Lennon, Head of Irish Regions European Office and Ms Laure 

Antoniotti, Administrative Officer, EU and Corporate Affairs with EMRA presented to the group on their work 

in supporting spatial and economic planning on a regional basis.  The Regional Spatial and Economic Strategy 

developed by EMRA in consultation with a wide range of stakeholders and the more recently developed 

Page 86



  

SPC WORKING GROUP – INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS & 
EUROPEAN AFFAIRS COMPLETION REPORT – DEC 2020 

3 

 

Metropolitan Spatial and Economic Plan for the Dublin region was discussed.  The European Regional 

Development Fund (ERDF), the work of the Committee of the Regions and the work of the Irish Regions 

European Office (IREO) headed up by Teresa Lennon who is based in Brussels was also discussed as were 

the opportunities for Dublin as an international city to have EU Funded projects or European Investment 

Projects identified, supported and funded to support future growth and address existing inequities in our 

communities and economy. Teresa Lennon, Head of Irish Regions European Office outlined the strategy for 

her office which is to provide advice and guidance to support the Committee of the Regions where 9 members 

of the group forms the Irish delegation where they have developed a strong profile.  The policy objectives 

includes raising awareness of opportunities, building capacity and partnerships with other regions, signposting 

to national contact points across the three regional assemblies and raising the profile of the strengths of local 

and national government.  In October the European Week of Regions and Cities will take place and Dublin will 

be represented by Smart Dublin who are working on a Green Cities by co-design project.  

European Investment Bank Presentation: 

Mr Cormac Murphy, Head of EIB Group Office for Ireland, Dublin and Mr Kevin McGillycuddy, Urban Sector 

Specialist for Ireland presented on The EU Bank Supporting Urban Investment.  The EU bank established in 

1958 provided around 90% of lending within the EU.  As the world’s largest financial institution it is a leading 

provider of climate finance, has over 50 local offices and 3,400 staff.  EIB can provide favourable borrowings 

to clients and the four key lending priority areas in 2019 have been Environment (€16.5B) – Infrastructure 

(€15.7B), Innovation (€14.4B) and SMEs (€25.5B).  In June 2020 EIB published the EIB Climate Bank 

Roadmap (2021 to 2025) where all projected funded past 2020 are consistent with the Paris Agreement.  The 

share of EIB finance dedicated to climate action and environmental sustainability will rise to 50% by 2025.  

The Energy lending policy from 2021 onwards will fund the renovation of buildings that achieve at least two 

levels of energy performance.  The urban agenda for the EU does not create additional EU funding, but draws 

on lessons learned in order to make it easier for city governments to apply for funding from all EU programmes, 

including those falling under cohesion policy.  EIB is keen to help cities to create tailor made solutions and 

finance smart investments that stimulates development through sustainable, integrated, inclusive and 

innovative developments.  Smart Specialisation strategies will enhance R&I capacities, promote digitisation 

for citizens, governments and companies, develop skills for industrial transition and entrepreneurship and 

support growth and competitiveness of SMEs, Start-Ups and Scale Ups.  Examples of regeneration projects 

were also covered in the presentation.  

 

August: 

At the July meeting the Working Group members decided that they would support the submission on the 

national and regional dissemination of the European Structural Investment Fund (ESIF) for European Regional 

Development Fund (ERDF) and the European Social Fund (ESF) for the next programme period (2021 – 

2027).  This submission has been drafted for discussion at the Working Group meeting of the 4th September.  

The deadline for receipt of this submission is close of business on the 4th September.  

The Working Group members also decided that they would like a briefing arranged for all Councillors on 

European Funding opportunities.  This will be considered by the CPG at their meeting at the end of September 

to agree the best way to provide this briefing. The CPG will discuss the briefing for all Councillors on European 

Funding Opportunities at its next meeting at the end of September and arrangement will be put in place for 

this briefing to take place.   

 

Page 87



  

SPC WORKING GROUP – INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS & 
EUROPEAN AFFAIRS COMPLETION REPORT – DEC 2020 

4 

 

September 

In late September 2020, the Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee Working Group 

on International Relations & European Affairs, sought to ascertain details on existing and past EU projects and 

EU funded national projects that Dublin City Council has participated in or applied to. This was in order to 

prepare for future EU funding and project opportunities and to gain an understanding of the level and scope 

of EU funded projects under the 2014 to 2020 EU budget cycle and to assist in raising awareness of funding 

opportunities in the new EU budget cycle (2021-2027).  

Development Process:  

An external co-ordinator, Urban Mode Ltd, has been appointed to progress European project proposal 

potential. A project proposal has been developed to examine the Council’s capability and capacity for 

developing European funding opportunities for the upcoming 2021 – 2027 European Funding programme. The 

Corporate Policy Group, which met on 25th September, has been informed of this approach. 

The preparation process involves a 3 stage approach being carried out: 

Stage Process Timeframe 

Stage 1 Complete Internal Organisation Survey October 2020 

Stage 2 Develop & Deliver Staff Information Sessions November 2020 

Stage 3 Develop European Programme Strategy Document December 2020 

 

October 2020 Stage 1: Internal organisation survey:  

In the first week in October 2020, a survey questionnaire was issued to all departments and sections across 

the organisation. Submissions were received from 8 Departments and 14 sections. All data was collated, 

reviewed and presented to the SPC working group on 12th October 2020. 

November 2020 Stage 2: Information Sharing Events:  

European Programme Information sharing meetings were developed and scheduled to be held in collaboration 

with National Contact Points for various programmes. It is noted there has already been a seminar with Eastern 

Midlands Regional Assembly and the European Investment Bank on 29th July with the SPC Working Group. 

Four information sessions focusing on Urban & Regional Regeneration, Horizon Europe, Smart & Green; and 

Social & Cultural; have been delivered for internal Dublin City Council staff in November (10th, 12th, 17th and 

19th) and a full overview information session with the full council on 25th November 2020.  

 

Info Session Theme Timeframe 

Session 1 Urban & Regional Regeneration 10th November 2020 

Session 2 Horizon Europe 12th November 2020 

Session 3 Smart & Green 17th November 2020 

Session 4 Social & Cultural 19th November 2020 

Session 5 Full Council Briefing 25th November 2020 

 

December 2020 Stage 3: European Funding Strategy for Dublin City Council:  

Following the data gathering and information sharing process stages, development of a strategy document for 

Future Funding for Dublin City Council has been completed. The EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 

– 2027 was presented to Senior Management on 14th December and the SPC Working Group on 18th 

December. This strategy is also on the Agenda for the January meeting of the SPC.  

 

Page 88



  

SPC WORKING GROUP – INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS & 
EUROPEAN AFFAIRS COMPLETION REPORT – DEC 2020 

5 

 

8 SPC Working Group Outputs: 

i) ESIF Submissions to the Eastern Midlands Regional Assembly – Sept 2020: 

One of the outputs of the working group to date has been the awareness raising of the funding 

opportunities at EU level and the engagement with key organisations and individual within EMRA, IREO 

and the European Investment Bank.  The key output to date has been the decision by Working Group 

members to have a submission prepared on the European Structural & Investment Funds (ESIF).  Each 

member state is required to prepare a Partnership Agreement outlining the strategic funding priorities for 

the period of the operational programmes – 2021 to 2027 – detailing how they will implement the funds.  

The collation of this submission was carried out by staff of the economic development office on behalf of 

the members of the working group.  A draft of the submission was shared with members of the Working 

Group and was discussed in detail at the meeting held on the 4th September in advance of the submission 

deadline.  The submission was updated following the meeting.  The submission highlights the impact of 

COVID19 and Brexit on the Dublin City Economy, and the need for continued enhanced funding for Dublin 

city for the next 7 year period – 2021 – 2027. 

ii) Internal Organisation Survey: October 2020 

A survey questionnaire was issued to all departments and sections across the organisation. Submissions 

were received from 8 Departments and 14 sections. All data was collated, reviewed and presented to the 

SPC working group on 12th October 2020. Survey report contained in EU Programme Participation 

Strategy 2021 – 2027. 

iii) Information Sharing Sessions: November 2020 

Four information sessions with EMRA, HEIs and National Contact Points for multiple programmes, 

focusing on Urban & Regional Regeneration, Horizon Europe, Smart & Green; and Social & Cultural; have 

been delivered for internal Dublin City Council staff in November (10th, 12th, 17th and 19th) and a full 

overview information session with the full council on 25th November 2020. Agendas attached in 

Appendices 

iv) Full Council Briefing – November 2020: 

A full Council briefing was held on 25th November with EMRA, IREO and summations from the National 

Contact Points from multiple programmes, including Horizon Europe, URBACT, Creative Europe, 

Erasmus+, InterReg and HEIs, DCU, TCD, TU Dublin and UCD. Agenda attached in Appendices 

v) EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027: 

EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 was completed in December, which culminates the 

work of the SPC Working Group on EU Affairs & International Relations. This strategy document contains 

baseline data on expertise & knowledge across the organisation, programme details and processes 

collated from 5 Information sharing meetings and seminars & consultations taken place with elected 

members & senior management. This strategy will be presented to the Economic Development & 

Enterprise SPC on 12th January 2021. 

Page 89





1 
 

 

 
Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Economic Development & Enterprise  

Tuesday 12th January 2021  
 

Agenda Item 8: Management Reports 
 

Contents 

1. International Relations: ...................................................................... page 2 

2. Local Enterprise Office: Training, Mentoring & Financial Grants page(s) 3-13 

3. Dublin Place Brand - Dublin.ie.................................................. page(s) 14-16 

4. Economic Development Office................................................. page(s) 17-21  

5. Smart Dublin & Smart Districts ................................................ page(s) 22-24  

6. Appendix 1: LEO Response Supports for COVID ....................... page(s) 25-26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



2 
 

1. International Relations: 

International Relations continues to focus on developing and enhancing existing 
international relationships through mutually beneficial initiatives, cultural, educational and 
economic development exchanges.  International Relations acts as first point of contact for 
city, business and government visiting delegations from other cities to provide support to the 
Lord Mayor’s office on international relations matters.   This work is continuing virtually 
during the Covid 19 pandemic. 
 

Embassy of Canada 
 
A virtual meeting took place between the Chargee d’affaires and senior officials from the 
Canadian Embassy and the Assistant Chief Executive, Head of Technical Services, 
Environment & Transportation and International Relations to exchange knowledge and 
expertise in the areas of traffic management and mobility and smart cities.   It is proposed 
that a follow up meeting will take place in the New Year. 
 
Eurocities 
 
The business of Eurocities and the work of its Thematic Forums are also being delivered by 
online webinars during the pandemic. 
 

Page 92



3 
 

2. Local Enterprise Office: Training, Mentoring & Financial Grants 

LEO Response Supports for COVID  
An overview of the suite of supports for business and enterprise is included in Appendix 1 of the 
report. Throughout the lockdown and emergency period, the Local Enterprise Office network has 
provided LEO Lunch and Learn webinars which are available at 
https://www.localenterprise.ie/response/Lunch-and-Learn-Training-Webinar-Series/  
 
 

BREXIT Supports  
A handy guide to Brexit supports, which are available through Dublin City Local Enterprise Office are 
available at https://www.localenterprise.ie/Discover-Business-Supports/Brexit/ 
 to assist businesses manage their Brexit response through –  
 
- Scorecards and checklists to help with planning  

- One-to-one mentoring  

- Customs Training  

- Financial supports  

- Access to worldwide support networks  

- Practical Steps to getting your Business Brexit Ready  
 

In addition to this since November 2020 a panel of four business mentors have begun individually 

contacting the client portfolio to raise awareness of the consequences of Brexit to their respective 

businesses and to highlight available supports. A comprenshive review of Brexit supports from LEO 

Dublin City and other state agencies can be found here https://www.prepareforbrexit.com/ 

 
Measure 2 Statistics: Business Advice, Training & Mentoring:  
Training  
 
Dublin City Local Enterprise Office has moved its training programmes, workshops and networking 
meet-ups online, and has adapted its programme to reflect business requirements in response to 
COVID-19. Participation levels and feedback to date has been positive.  
The focus has moved towards supporting businesses respond to the growing demand to move their 
business online/ enhance their current online offering. The areas covered are: “Act Fast - How to 
launch an online programme quickly during COVID19” and “Ecommerce Online - best practice for 
your business in a digital age”. Other courses include Pricing in a pandemic - challenges & issues and 
leading your business through COVID-19 and advice for employers impacted by the crisis. 
 Fees for the training programmes have been reintroduced. As they are heavily subsidised only 
nominal fees are being charged to encourage participation. Places can be booked online, through 
the Dublin City Local Enterprise Office website. https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-
Events/Online-Bookings/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93

https://www.localenterprise.ie/response/Lunch-and-Learn-Training-Webinar-Series/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/Discover-Business-Supports/Brexit/
https://www.prepareforbrexit.com/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/


4 
 

 
November 2020 – Training Programmes Review 

Date Course Name Places Attendees 

04/11/2020 Library Talks – Creating 

the Best Plan for your 

Business 

50 44 

05/11/2020 Trading Online Voucher 

Information Session 5th of 

November 2020  

151 151 

05/11/2020 Twitter for Business – 

Half Day  

30 23 

05/11/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

20 12 

07/11/2020 Start Your Own Business 

November 2020 

30 28 

10/11/2020 Start Your Own Business 

November 2020 – 

Weekends 

30 17 

10/11/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

20 10 

11/11/2020 Library Talks – Financial 

Supports & Grants for 

Entrepreneurs 

50 50 

17/11/2020 Time Management 30 30 

18/11/2020 Library Talks – Pitching to 

Potential Investors/ 

Lenders & Clients 

50 41 

18/11/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

22 22 

24/11/2020 Social Media Content – 

Creating content that will 

make your brand stand 

out online 

30 27 

24/11/2020 An introduction to 

franchising  

30 17 

25/11/2020 Library talks – Digital 

Marketing Strategy & 

Online Presence 

50 50 

Page 94



5 
 

26/11/2020 Trading Online Voucher 

Information Session 26th 

of November 2020 

150 150 

26/11/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

22 22 

          694 Attendees 

 

December 2020 – Training Programmes Review 

 

Date Course Name Places Attendees 

01/12/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

20 20 

02/12/2020 Etsy and Shopify – Sell 

your Handmade Products 

Online 

20 11 

03/12/2020 How to Maximise your 

Website 

20 15 

08/12/2020 Trading Online Voucher 

Information Session 8th of 

December 2020 

100 100 

09/12/2020 Business Advice Group 

Meeting 

20 20 

16/12/2020 Smartphone Video and 

Photography for the Web 

30 12 

          178 Attendees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



6 
 

January 2021 – Training Programme Preview  

 

Event Location Further Details – Link to Event: Date & Time 

Business Advice 

Clinic 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-

Meeting-%2001-2021.html 

 

6th January 

Business Advice 

Clinic 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-

Meeting-02-2021.html 

 

12th January 

Trading Online 

Voucher 

Information 

Session 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-

Information-Session-12th-January-2021.html 

 

12th January 

Start Your Own 

Business Course 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Start-Your-Own-

Business-Course-Mid-Week-January-2021.html 

 

19th January  

Brexit Customs 

and Planning 

Webinar 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Brexit-Customs-and-

Planning-Webinar1.html 

 

22nd January 

Trading Online 

Voucher 

Information 

Session 

Virtual https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-

Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-

Information-Session-26th-January-2021.html 

 

26th January 

 

Start your Own Business Programme  
Is the entry level training programme the Local Enterprise Office (LEO) Dublin City offers and 
graduates of the programme regularly progress onto obtaining funding support from the LEO Dublin 
City and other state agencies. The programme helps participants to obtain and/or develop the 
necessary skills and knowledge to assess the marketing and financial viability of their business 
idea/project. The programme is delivered over 5 weeks as two engaging and interactive workshops 
per week.  Since March 2020 the programme has run exclusively online. We have ran 12 Start Your 
Own Business Courses with 298 attendees this year. 

 
Mentoring  
Under the Local Enterprise Office Mentor Programme, clients work with an experienced mentor to 
identify solutions to areas of exposure within their business. With advice and guidance from their 
mentor, clients develop strategies that are more robust, which address issues and maximise 

Page 96

https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-%2001-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-%2001-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-%2001-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-02-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-02-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Business-Advice-Group-Meeting-02-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-12th-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-12th-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-12th-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Start-Your-Own-Business-Course-Mid-Week-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Start-Your-Own-Business-Course-Mid-Week-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Start-Your-Own-Business-Course-Mid-Week-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Brexit-Customs-and-Planning-Webinar1.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Brexit-Customs-and-Planning-Webinar1.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Brexit-Customs-and-Planning-Webinar1.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-26th-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-26th-January-2021.html
https://www.localenterprise.ie/DublinCity/Training-Events/Online-Bookings/Trading-Online-Grant-Information-Session-26th-January-2021.html


7 
 

potential opportunities. Nominal fees have been introduced and the service continues to be 
delivered remotely.  

 
 

Mentoring 2020 Target YTD* 2019 
Performance 

Y on Y Variance 

1 Hour Product no longer offered 4 4 

3 Hour 275 480 285 195 

6 Hour 300 298 46 252 

Brexit 
Engagement & 
Mentoring 

 
30 

 
186 

60 

 
126 

Clinics 48 49 47 2 

BAC Participants 500 875 693 182 

Individual 
Mentoring 

500 778 348 430 

One to One & 
Group Mentoring 

1000 1653 1054 599 

 
         (YTD 17/12/2020) 

  

Funding schemes 
COVID-19 Business Continuity Voucher – was designed to provide contingency planning advice to 

assist businesses to continue trading through the Covid - 19 crisis. Businesses employing up to 50 
staff, were eligible to apply for a Business Continuity Voucher to the value of €2,500 towards third 
party consultancy costs to assist with developing short-term and long-term strategies to deal with the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The scheme closed for applications on the 15th of May 2020. 
 

Total No Applications Received  1305 

No. Male Applicants  849  

No. Male Approved Applicants  531  

No. Female Applicants  456  

No. Female Approved Applicants  312  

No. Applications Approved  843  

Value of Approvals  €2,107,500 

Value of Payments  €1,699,241.29 

         (Figures as at 16/12/2020) 
 

Micro Enterprise Assistance Fund (MEAF) – is a grant of between €500 and €1,000 in respect of 

vouched expenditure available to eligible businesses, helping such businesses adapt and invest in 
making changes demanded by Covid-19, including helping with the cost of re-opening or keeping 
operational and re-connecting with employees and customers. The scheme closed on the 13th of 
November 2020. 
 

Total No Applications Received 37 

Total No Applications Approved 17 

Value of Approvals €16049 

         (Figures as at 16/12/2020) 
 

 

Page 97



8 
 

Measure 1 (Grants) Approvals Metrics :  January - December 2020 
 

   

 #No of M1 Grant Applications Jobs  Value of M1 Grants  

Type of Grant Annual 
Target 

Total # No 
Approved 

2020 

Variance Total Jobs 
Created 
Target - 

Grant 
Approvals 

Total Jobs 
Created - 

From 
Grant 

Approvals 
2020 

Annual 
Target  

Total Value 
M1  Grant 
Approved 

2020 

Variance 

Feasibility Grant 
 

33 34  -1  33 34 €247,500 €285,672 -€38,172 

Priming 
 

12 13  -1  18 30 €180,000 €292,500 -€112,500 

Business 
Expansion Grant 
 

29 27 2  58 66 €725,000 €712,500 €12,500 

TOTAL  74 74  0  109  130  €1,152,500 €1,290,672 -€138,172 

 

Total Projected 3 yrs Jobs  

 Annual 
Jobs 
Target 

Projected 
Achieved 3 
yr Jobs 

Variance 

Feasibility 66 34 32 

Priming 36 115 -79 

Business 
Expansion 

116 196 -80 

Total  218 345 -127 

    

Grant Type MAX 
Target 

Delivered   
(Approved) 

Variance 

Feasibility Grant 20% 22% -2% 

P
age 98



9 
 

GRANTS APPROVED UP TO DECEMBER 2020 

 

GMIS No Company Promoter Type of Grant Amount 
Approved 

Jobs 

9025699 DeveloperFair Ltd Joseph Harkins Priming 30,000 3 

12006384 Ethical Clothing Company Limited T/A Fresh 
Cuts Clothing 

Steven Murphy Business 
Expansion 

7,500 1 

9027386 Dublin Offshore Consultants Ltd Tom Doyle Feasibility 10,000 1 

9026308 Tempo Utero Limited Justyna Strzeszn Feasibility 8,000 1 

9027372 Akara Robotics Ltd. Conor McGinn Feasibility 15,000 1 

9026232-02 Marker Content Ltd Greta Dunne Feasibility 10,000 1 

9026959 Karen Pryal T/A Akrona LTD Karen Feasibility 5,000 1 

9026502 Sinope Tech Limited Emmet Feasibility 8,000 1 

9022672 Stork and Coco Sophie Cafolla Feasibility 6,000 1 

9024063-03 Continuous Software Limited Cagkan Turgut Business 
Expansion 

40,000 4 

9021410 Kathryn Davey Kathryn Davey Business 
Expansion 

17,500 2 

9022104-02 TLC Technologies Limited t/a SureSitter Sinead Asple Priming 20,000 2 

9017981-02 Edge Media Advertising Ltd Paul Murphy Business 
Expansion 

17,500 2 

9027535_01 Transit9 Limited Keith MacHale Business 
Expansion 

35,000 3 

9026836 Loanguru Limited Alva Horgan Feasibility 7,000 1 

9022395-04 Silk Tree Botanics Ltd Andrew Oates Priming 10,000 1 

9027539 Accenver Limited Michelle Ang Feasibility 11,000 1 

9027536_01 Tripadmit Ltd John Maguire Priming 40,000 4 

9024033 The Nature of Things Benoit Nicol Priming 25,000 3 

9027537_01 Argeau Holdings Ltd Adam Cleland Feasibility 8,000 1 

9027538_01 Altra Health Ltd Adam Keane Feasibility 9,000 1 

P
age 99



10 
 

11014214 Cleverfoods Ltd Gillian Shiels Business 
Expansion 

17,500 2 

13012877 Flamenco IL Holdings t/a RYPT Cormac O'Beirne Priming 10,000 1 

9023644 Paula Love t/a Hairbare Paula Love Feasibility 1,400 1 

9005456 Revington Hayes Limited t/a LEI Worldwide Darragh Hayes Business 
Expansion 

17,500 2 

9022546 KOTANICAL LIMITED Karl Murray Priming 10,000 1 

9024492 Digital Construction Technologies Group Joseph Mady Business 
Expansion 

35,000 3 

9024931 Komply Privacy Limited Welsey O'Brien Feasibility 10,000 1 

9027785 ACE Golf Tee Ltd. Elizabeth Lawlor Feasibility 7,000 1 

9026430 IKEO Group Ltd Ian Keogh Feasibility 12,000 1 

9023527 Zazuents Ivano Cafolla Feasibility 10,000 1 

9026817 Inneall Development Ltd Ciaran Mac Donncha Business 
Expansion 

30,000 3 

9019019 Access Security & Control Technology t/a 2T-
Technology 

Denis Glesson Business 
Expansion 

15,000 1 

9025582 CLIRINX Ltd Gerry Nesbitt Business 
Expansion 

10,000 1 

9014904-02 Edge Only Limited Jenny Huston Business 
Expansion 

7,500 1 

9028694 NovoGrid Ltd Paul Manning Business 
Expansion 

30,000 2 

9028695 Remotie Aine Kavanagh Feasibility 10,000 1 

9026717 Rag Revolution Edel Lyons Feasibility 10,500 1 

9028696 Magneplan Nicole Murphy Feasibility 2,340 1 

9029811 RTN2SNDR t/a Return2Sender Donald Douglas Feasibility 8,900 1 

9029813 Orcawise Limited Kevin Neary Feasibility 10,000 1 

9012688 Leapfrog Training Studio Ltd t/a Yoflicks Lisa Wilkinson Feasibility 7,850 1 

9029812 Druid Learning Limited Niamh Faller Feasibility 5400 1 

9010355-03 Narom Ltd t/a COGNIKIDS Ollwyn Moran Feasibility 10000 1 

P
age 100



11 
 

9023499 Motion Impulse Limited Elise Missall Business 
Expansion 

20000 2 

9012398 Allgo Global Rewards Limited t/a Allgo Gary Purcell Business 
Expansion 

20000 2 

9029814 The Inkspot Limited Gerry Morgan Business 
Expansion 

40000 4 

11008589-04 Promozoo Limited Brian Larkin Business 
Expansion 

30000 2 

9030255 TrialProofer Ireland Limited Aidan Buckley Feasibility 12500 1 

9030256 PharmaTech Solutions Kieran Gallagher Feasibility 5000 1 

9030257 Outmin Limited Ross Hunt Feasibility 10311 1 

9030259 Build My Unicorn Thomas Walsh Feasibility 9132 1 

9028772 UNDACI Ltd t/a  Personal Freight Services Cian Hore Business 
Expansion 

30000 2 

9022008-02 White Mausu Limited Jasper O'Connor Business 
Expansion 

20000 2 

9015186-02 STONEY CNC Ltd. Rob McGrath Business 
Expansion 

37500 4 

9027280-02 RPC Websites Limited t/a Roody Originals Ross Culliton Business 
Expansion 

45000 4 

9027890 Core Metals Limited Paul Brereton Business 
Expansion 

37500 4 

9027463 Raw Material t/a Kopper Kreation Emmet Bosonnet Priming 10000 1 

12014242-03 Hatched Ltd. t/a Hatched Analytics Charmaine Kenny Business 

Expansion 

40,000 3 

9030513 Stills and Motion Productions Limited Finn Richards Business 

Expansion 

17,500  2 

9030514 EarthCrosser Ventures: Limited Company Ruben Hamilius Business 

Expansion 

25,000  3 

P
age 101



12 
 

9030516 Hauora Ltd. David Clancy Priming 30,000  3 

9030515 Harry's Nut Butter Harry Colley Priming 20,000  2 

9026372-02 Animis Labs Limited Daniel O'Neill Feasibility 6,900 1 

9030519 Switch Reusable Cup and Rewards Limited David Beakey Feasibility 9,375  1 

9005001-05 Arden Energy Fergal Purcell Feasibility 13,555  1 

9030520 DCE Industry Limited Stephen Cronin Feasibility 4,750  1 

9030258 Filter Health Limited Stephen Keenan Feasibility 6,758.88  1 

9025972 Swollet Technologies Limited Eleftherios Laliatos Feasibility 5,000  1 

9024359-02 SparroWatch Limited David Tunney Business 

Expansion 

10,000  1 

9017973-02 The Project Foundry Declan Ryan Business 

Expansion 

60,000  4 

9027537-02 Argeau Holdings Ltd trading as "Argeau" Adam Cleland Priming 47,500  5 

9031083 Peggy Rain Limited Colin O'Brien Priming 10,000  1 

9022672-03 Stork & Co Design Ltd Sophie Cafolla Priming 30,000  3 

   TOTAL €129,671.88 130 

      

 

P
age 102



13 
 

Trading Online Voucher Metrics: 

 

Trading Online Vouchers:  
 

Target 2020 
 

 
January – 27 November 

2020 
 

No. of Trading Online Vouchers Approved 
 

No target set 1051 

Value of Trading Online Vouchers Approved   €2,545,878.35 

No. of Trading Online Vouchers Paid   126 

Value of Trading Online Vouchers Paid   
                                        

€311,511.44  

 

 

TAME Metrics: January to 30th November 2020 

Technical Assistance for 
Micro Exporters :  M1 

Metrics 2020 
Target  2020   January  -  21 October 2020 

Grant Approvals  40  5 

TAME  5  

TAME Food Academy  
 

  

Budget Approvals 2019 95,000  6,921.00 

Value of Grants Paid Out To 
date   

 15,582.56 

 

 

 

Page 103



14 
 

3. Dublin Place Brand - Dublin.ie 

Dublin Place Brand 

 

Open for Christmas Campaign 

The ‘Open for Christmas’ campaign to support shops, restaurants and cafés in the city centre is 

taking place throughout December. The campaign encourages the public to safely return to the city 

in the lead up to Christmas. Running across outdoor advertising sites (bus stops, digi-panels and 

metropoles, big belly bins and IPA posters); radio promotions with FM104 and Radio Nova and 

across our social media channels. A video, featuring voiceover from Stephen James Smith and music 

by local Dublin band, Hudson Taylor, was also shot in the first week after lockdown to showcase the 

city. To date, the video has received almost 72k views. For more, see: https://dublin.ie/christmas 

     

#StaySafe Campaign 

Alongside ‘Open for Christmas’, the Dublin Brand team, in collaboration with the Events Unit, 

created a campaign to specifically highlight the importance of COVID safety in the city centre. This 

campaign is running across lamp post banners, digi-panels and big belly bins in December. 

       
 

Supporting Events 

Winter Lights 

In collaboration with the Events Unit who deliver the exciting Winter Lights, Dublin.ie is the home for 

Page 104

https://dublin.ie/christmas


15 
 

all things Winter Lights 2020. This includes a map of all locations, stunning night-time photos, plus all 

82 portrait photos of frontline workers that are projected in Smithfield Square. Live webcams of five 

locations will go live from 23rd December. See: https://dublin.ie/winterlights  

 

12 Days of ‘A Christmas Carol’ 

In collaboration with the Mansion House & The Lord Mayor, Dublin.ie is hosting 12 videos featuring 

a host of well-known faces reading a different chapter of the Charles Dickens tale, ‘A Christmas 

Carol’. See: https://dublin.ie/12days  

Growing Dublin Place Brand’s audience on social 

A campaign to grow our audience across our social media platforms (Facebook, Twitter & Instagram) 

throughout 2020 has been very successful. We have now reached: 

 14.5k on Facebook 

 13k on Twitter  

 3k on Instagram 

The campaign will continue to year end.   

 
 

 

New sustainable merchandise 

Working with sustainable suppliers, we are sourcing new branded merchandise including notebooks, 

bags, cycle seat covers and umbrellas. We’re also working with NCAD to design and manufacture, 

Page 105

https://dublin.ie/winterlights
https://dublin.ie/12days


16 
 

sustainable, branded DUBLIN masks. Over 20 design options were created by NCAD students for this 

project. We plan to have the first masks ready for distribution early in the new year. Samples below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



17 
 

4. Economic Development Office  

 

 

SPC Progress Report 
Economic Development Office  

 
12th January 2021 

 
 
 

Upcoming Events & Dates for your diary 

Event Economic Pillar Date/Venue 

1. Economic & Enterprise SPC Place-Making & Clustering 12th January 2021 

2. One Zero Promotion & Investment March 2021  

3. Dublin City Social Enterprise 2021 Promotion & Investment March 2021 

4. Your Dublin Your Voice Human Development March 2021 

5. Dublin Economic Monitor Promotion & Investment  March 2021  

6. Futurescope Climate & Innovation Q1 2021  

7. Dublin Tech Summit Promotion & Investment April 2021 

 
 

Departmental Update: 
 

1. Economic Development Action Plan 2021 – Strategic Approach 
The EDO Action Plan is being finalised for 2021 in response to the COVID 19 Global Pandemic, 

the Roadmap to Reopening Ireland and the recent Reset Summit for the city. Under further 

review Dublin and the country have been moved to Level 3 from 1st December – 18th 

December; with additional movement allowed between 18th December – 6th January. 

 
 
 
 
 

Climate & 

Innovation 

Page 107



18 
 

Policy: 
 

2. Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor - Placemaking & Clustering 

A political advisory group has been established with representatives from each of the 8 local 

authorities whom are participating within the Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor. Three elected 

members will represent Dublin City Council on this group including the Lord Mayor of Dublin 

Hazel Chu; Cllr Claire O’Connor, Chair of the Economic Development & Enterprise SPC; and Cllr 

Mary Freehill, Chair of the SPC Working Group on International Relations & EU Affairs. The 

political advisory group will meet in late 2020; early 2021. 
 

3. Economic Development & Enterprise Strategic Policy Committee: SPC - Strategic Approach 

The November sitting of the Economic Development & Enterprise SPC meeting took place on 

10th November remotely via MS Teams. Presentations were provided on BREXIT, which was 

carried out by Enterprise Ireland. A further ppresentation was provided on the Your Dublin 

Your Voice survey on people returning to the city post COVID19, provided by EDO and a 

presentation on the Smart8 District by Smart Cities. Progress reports were presented on the 

two SPC Working groups on progress to date, outlined below. As this was the last meeting of 

2020, a review of the year was discussed, it was highlighted 46 meetings relating to the work of 

the SPC had been held during 2020. A discussion also took place on a number of motions which 

were received for this sitting of the SPC. The next SPC meeting is scheduled for 12th January 

2021.  
 

4. Economic Development & Enterprise SPC  Working Group Tourism, City Markets & Night 

Time Economy - Strategic Approach 

The SPC chair reviewed and approved the three new members to join the Tourism, City 

Markets & Night Time Economy Working Group. This development was also approved by the 

Corporate Policy Committee on 25th September. The working group chair resigned due to time 

constraints and commitments. New chair appointed, Cllr Danny Byrne and the group met on 9th 

November to progress the work programme, with the 3 new members and a new chair for the 

working group. The group received presentations from Dublin Town on the COVID impact on 

businesses in the city and also an update on the National Task Force on Night Time Economy 

and developments in City Markets. The group will meet again on 17th December focusing on 

Tourism with presentations from Fáilte Ireland and Dublin Economic Monitor. 
 

5. Economic Development & Enterprise SPC  Working Group International Relations & EU 

Affairs - Strategic Approach 

The International Relations & EU Affairs working group met on 28th September and 12th 

October to progress the work of the group. At the first meeting, the members received an 

overview of the proposal to develop European funding opportunities to year end. The proposal 

includes a 3 step plan which will conclude with a European funding strategy for the 

organisation. An internal survey was disseminated across the organisation in early October, 

data collated and analysed and results presented to the working group on 12th October; as well 

as a presentation aligning EU priorities to the capital programme. 5 EU Funding Programmes 

Information Sharing sessions have been developed and delivered in November. Following the 

sessions, an EU Programme Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 has been developed and 

completed on 11th December. The final meeting of this working group is scheduled for 18th 

December.  

 

Page 108



19 
 

Projects: 

6. MODOS - Sustainability Training for Business - Climate & Innovation 

The MODOS programme has been highlighted by the National Oversight & Audit Committee 

(NOAC) as a best practice project for the Local Authority sector. MODOS has been presented at 

the Enterprise Ireland Green Enterprise Working Group and the DCC Climate Change Action 

Plan Engagement Workshops to showcase exemplar implementation of circular economy 

initiatives for micro, small and medium enterprises. To further support businesses in their 

transition from a linear to a circular business model, a MODOS Voucher pilot project is 

currently under development, in alignment with the suite of LEO offering and products. A 

series of MODOS webinars on the topic of circular economy and innovation will also take place 

starting from January. In light of the positive feedback and expression of interest by members’ 

organisations and other local authorities to run the MODOS program to the benefit of their 

business networks, a Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted, in order for DCC to 

retain supervision, ownership of the program and the brand.   

 

7. Dublin Economic Monitor - Innovation & Transformation 

The December edition of the Dublin Economic Monitor was published on 10th December, with 

a focus on Q3 2020 stats with Economic impact review and analysis theme, BREXIT and 

reimagining the workplace. The edition can be available on www.dublineconomy.ie. The first 

DEM edition of 2021 will be published in Q1.  

 

8. European Funding Programme Strategic Development - Strategic Approach 

DCC Economic Development & Enterprise SPC – Working Group on International Relations 

& European Affairs, sought to ascertain details on existing and past EU projects / EU 

funded national projects that Dublin City Council had participated in or applied to. To gain 

an understanding of the level and scope of EU funded projects under the 2014 to 2020 EU 

budget cycle and to assist in raising awareness of funding opportunities in the new EU 

budget cycle (2021-2027). 3 Step process was completed between October – December 

2020. Step 1: DCC Internal organisation survey: Oct 2020: Internal survey took place in early 

October across the organisation to capture baseline data to identify European projects which 

the organisation has been involved in during the current period 2014 – 2020. 24 Surveys were 

completed and returned across a number of 8 Departments & 14 sections. Survey results 

identified where there are strengths in knowledge and opportunities for potential projects 

across all departments; and has formed the organisation’s baseline data. Step 2: Information 

Sharing Events: Nov 2020: 5 Information sessions took place during November to look at 

thematic approaches: Regional & Urban Development; Horizon Europe, Social & Culture and 

Smart & Green. Step 3: European Funding Strategy for Dublin City Council: Dec 2020: 

Following the information sessions, all data & details was collated & an EU Programme 

Participation Strategy 2021 – 2027 has been developed and completed on 11th December for 

the organisation in advance of the new EU Programme 2021 – 2027, presented to Senior 

Management on 14th December and to the SPC Working Group on 18th December. This will 

now be presented to the SPC meeting on 12th January. 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



20 
 

 Events: 
 
9. Event Sponsorship: 

The Economic Development Office provide support to various events across the city 

throughout the year. During 2020, this event sponsorship had been developed to assist in 

supporting identified economic sectors – Tech, Social Enterprise, Green Business / Circular 

Economy, Tourism, Markets, Food and Design. As a result of COVID19, all events were 

postponed during the emergency period and any events held have been provided as a remote 

virtual offering in line with current climate and operational guidelines. We have received a 

number of sponsorship requests for virtual events. We have amended our Event Sponsorship 

procedure and policy has been reviewed and amended as a result. 

10. Pendulum Resurgence - Promotion & Investment 

Pendulum Resurgence took place virtually on 27th November. EDO and Dublin.ie team hosted a 

virtual stand at the event to interact with attendees. Promotional material, EDO documents, 

videos and websites were showcased at the event. The Dublin Place brand logo and Dublin City 

Council logo were showcased heavily throughout the event.  

11. Dublin Summit Series – Reset Summit - Climate & Transformation 

The Reset Summit 2020 took place virtually on 26th November, as part of the Dublin City 

Summit Series. With 25 speakers, 4 panels and a keynote speech, the Summit considered how 

to reset and build back a better Dublin following the COVID 19 global pandemic and 

subsequent economic crisis. In line with Level 5 restrictions; the event was held remotely. The 

summit had 4 moderated panel discussions on: Innovation & Entrepreneurship; Employment & 

Skills; Community & Culture and Climate Action & Sustainability. Contributions made at the 

summit will inform Dublin City Council, and all stakeholders who are actively working to 

support the city and economy and the Dublin Regional Enterprise Plan. The Reset Summit 

Outcomes Report will be published in Q1 and has fed into the ED Work Programme for 2021, 

which will be presented to the SPC on 12.Jan.20. Video & article highlights were published on 

DCC website in December. 

https://www.dublincity.ie/business/economic-development-and-enterprise/strategic-policy-

committee/reset-summit-2020 

 

Research: 

12. Social Enterprise: – Human Development 

The National Social Enterprise Conference took place in November hosted by the Department 

 

13. Social Enterprise Awards 2020: Placemaking & Clusters 

Dublin City Social Enterprise Awards 2020 have been shortlisted and evaluation completed. 

The awards took place remotely on 12th November. This year’s awardees were highlighted and 

celebrated at the awards. The Social Enterprise Awards, managed by Inner City Enterprise and 

funded by Dublin City Council and the Department of Rural and Community Development 

contain a development programme for the awardee social enterprises, including mentoring, 

training and funding. 

 

Page 110

https://www.dublincity.ie/business/economic-development-and-enterprise/strategic-policy-committee/reset-summit-2020
https://www.dublincity.ie/business/economic-development-and-enterprise/strategic-policy-committee/reset-summit-2020


21 
 

14. Enterprise Challenge 2020: Human Development   

A brainstorming session for the brand development of Enterprise Challenge took place on 13th 

October, with representatives from LEO, EDO, HEI, students & enterprises. The pilot project 

will be renamed: ‘Enfuse’. Branding and programme materials will be developed after which 

the project will be re-launched in Qtr4 for commencement in Qtr1 2021. The project will be 

scaled further in Dublin City and will be examined regarding regional scaling.   

 

15. Your Dublin Your Voice: Placemaking & Clusters  

The fourth and final Your Dublin Your Voice survey for 2020 was published 8th -18th Dec. This 

was a collaboration with DCC’s Parks section, focused on Dublin’s biodiversity. Results will feed 

into the Biodiversity Action Plan to be launched in 2021. The findings of the survey will be 

collated, cleansed and disseminated to all stakeholders in Q1 2021.

Page 111



22 
 

 

5. Smart Dublin & Smart Districts 

 

 
Strategic Policy Committee 
 
Economic Development & Enterprise  
January  2021 
 
Agenda Item: Smart City Update – Smart Districts 

 

Smart Dublin is an initiative of the four Dublin Local Authorities to engage with smart 
technology providers, researchers and citizens to solve challenges and improve city life.  It 
aims to position Dublin as a world leader in the development of new urban solutions, using 
open data, and with the city region as a test bed.  

DCC Smart City Unit under the Smart Dublin umbrella, Dublin City Council has developed a 
world-leading Smart City programme.  It drives forward the use of new technologies to 
improve our city’s operations; improving efficiencies, reducing costs, driving economic 
growth and future proofing our communities.  

Through its Smart City programme, it has turned city challenges into opportunities; using 
new technologies to improve city services. The Smart City Unit works together with 
technology providers, academia and citizens to and data-driven solutions to local 
challenges. The programme is also focused on the roll out of smart districts across the city. 

Smart Districts are strategically selected locations where targeted smart city projects can be 
fast-tracked to measure impact and potential scalability. Each Smart District is unique, with 
bespoke programmes developed to meet the specific needs of the district residents and also 
provide growing businesses with a wider variety of testbed locations. 

Dublin City Council supports three out of the five Smart Dublin districts; Smart Docklands, 
Smart DCU and our latest smart district Smart D8, a smart district focusing on Health and 
Well Being. 

Smart District Updates:  

1. Link to the Innovation Webinar on Smart Districts:  https://smartdublin.ie/register-
now-smart-districts-fast-tracking-innovation-webinar/  

 

Smart D8 – A Smart Health and Wellbeing District 

UPDATE: Smart D8 has commenced an online and 
telephone survey to identify the community needs 
in the area. The online survey has 234 responses to 
date and expect 100 responses from the telephone 
survey by the time it closes before Christmas. 

Link to where the survey can be accessed: https://libertiesdublin.ie/take-the-smartd8-
health-wellbeing-survey/  

Page 112

https://smartdublin.ie/register-now-smart-districts-fast-tracking-innovation-webinar/
https://smartdublin.ie/register-now-smart-districts-fast-tracking-innovation-webinar/
https://libertiesdublin.ie/take-the-smartd8-health-wellbeing-survey/
https://libertiesdublin.ie/take-the-smartd8-health-wellbeing-survey/


23 
 

The Smart D8 launch will be held at the end of January. Invitations will be circulated to all 
members of the SPC in early January. Date TBC. 

2. This month’s report will focus on providing you with information on Smart DCU, A 
Smart Dublin district located at Dublin City University Campus.  

Overview: 

Kearney’s 2019 Global Cities Report revealed Dublin’s jump to 9th place as a future global 

city leader. Dublin’s “impressive performance” in Economic outlook and Innovation 

highlights it’s global rise as a tech hub destination. This reinforces the need for more smart 

district development, to showcase Dublin’s talented, innovative start-up community and to 

provide companies with real world testbeds to measure impact, fine tune solutions and 

scale-up their solutions. 

Smart DCU is the third smart 

district to be launched under 

the Smart Dublin umbrella – 

the purpose is to allow the fast 

tracking of Smart City 

technologies in a campus 

setting.  It’s a collaboration 

between DCC, Dublin City 

University (DCU) and the DCU 

Alpha innovation campus 

developed through the Insight Centre for Data Analytics (Insight) and the Enable research 

centre and SFI (Science Foundation Ireland). 

Dublin City Council’s involvement with the Smart DCU initiative provides additional test 

beds for companies pilot their solutions. It reinforces Dublin’s position as a leading smart 

city innovation hub in the global market and may encourage further foreign investment, 

benefiting the local and national economy.  

Just 5km outside Dublin’s City Centre, DCU is home to approx. 20,000 staff and students. It 

encompasses 5 campus locations and stretches over an excess of 105 acres in North Dublin. 

DCU Alpha, the Innovation Campus provides early stage start-ups with flexible office, lab 

and rapid prototyping space. Besides the evident innovation culture happening around 

campus, the Smart DCU district will work with companies to facilitate piloting their 

technology solutions using the campus as a testbed. The Smart DCU district also 

incorporates Croke Park stadium, one of Europe’s largest stadia opening the door to another 

area of innovation opportunities. 

The combined landscape of the campus district and Croke Park stadium will fast-track pilot 

deployments that may otherwise struggle in the public domain due to existing bye-laws or 

restricted accessto city assets. The Smart DCU district enables companies to measure the 

impact, assess the potential scalability and share their learnings with city leaders. These 

Page 113



24 
 

valuable insights may influence current policy, leading to positive change or may highlight 

the need for additional research before scaling. It highlights a shift in local government from 

reactive decision making to proactive thinking. Another advantage for cities is the exposure 

to new technology solutions without the commitment to purchase. City operators can 

provide feedback to companies and helping to inform the design process, resulting in better 

designed solutions. 

Kieran Mahon is the Programme Manager for Smart DCU and will highlight the current and 

proposed projects happening in Smart DCU. (Email: Kieran@smartdcu.ie ) Please see 

attached .pdf of the slides which Kieran will be presenting. 

For any queries in relation to any of the above please contact: 

Jamie Cudden, Smart City Programme Manager Jamie.cudden@dublincity.ie  or; 

Nicola Graham, Smart City Operations Manager Nicola.graham@dublincity.ie  

 

 

 

Page 114

mailto:Kieran@smartdcu.ie
mailto:Jamie.cudden@dublincity.ie
mailto:Nicola.graham@dublincity.ie


25 
 

6. Appendix 1: LEO Response Supports for COVID  

 

Page 115



26 
 

 

Page 116



 

 

SPC Meeting Schedule 2021 

 

 

Times:                  3.30pm – 5.30pm 

Location:            Council Chamber, City Hall  

(Subject to government guidelines at the time;  

MS Teams as contingency location) 

Dates:                   Jan 12th, April 20th , Sept 14th , Nov 9th  

 

 

 
Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Economic Development & Enterprise  

 
10th November 2020 

 
3.30pm - 5.30pm 

 
MS Teams 

 

Page 117




	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Presentation: DCC EU Programme Participation Strategy-Wessel Badenhorst, Urban Mode Ltd
	4 Presentation: Smart Cities District Presentation, Smart DCU District-Kieran Mahon, Smart DCU Projects Facilitator, Smart DCU
	5 Presentation: Pre-Draft Consultation of the City Development Plan- Deirdre Scully, Deputy City Planner
	6 Policy: 2021 Work Programme
	7b International Relations & EU Affairs
	8 Economic Development & Enterprise Management Reports
	9b 2021 Meeting Dates

